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2018 was the
wettest in recorded
history with 68.83” of
precipitation

Louisville Water

Quality Water…Quality of Life

President’s Message
Spencer Bruce, President/CEO

Every day, nearly one million people depend on Louisville Water Company to provide safe, high-quality
drinking water that we’re proud to deliver.

W

Louisville Water has a 158-year history of quality,
innovation, value and service. The company
began operations in 1860 as Kentucky’s

e’re in the business of water, and in 2018

We are doing a good job of keeping our customers hap-

es in its 158-year history. We accomplished this in the midst

2018 Water Utility Residential Customer Satisfaction Study,

Louisville Water had one of the best performanc-

of record rainfall and extreme winter weather. The result

first public water provider and today

was a year in which we continued to not only provide out-

supplies water and fire protection

standing water quality but also to improve and expand our

to communities in Louisville

infrastructure, to create new revenue streams and to raise

Metro and parts of Bullitt,

Louisville Water’s profile throughout our service area. In

Hardin, Nelson, Oldham,

short, 2018 was a year in which our owner, Louisville Metro,

Shelby and Spencer

received another solid return on its investment. In fact, it was

counties.

our highest percentage increase in net income since 2012.

About 17.5 miles of new water pipeline were installed, which
is a record for recent years and a sign of economic growth in

our region. We promote this growth by supporting local, regional and state efforts with a team of our employees who

share the story of our abundant “liquid assets” to business

Louisville
Water
Mission

site selectors across the country. We also continue to sharp-

en our focus on new lines of business and regionalization.
(Our wholesale water sales alone were $5.7 million in 2018.)

Provide the highest quality

water and related services

To improve our infrastructure, we continued to make signif-

who deliver exceptional value to our

our largest and oldest water mains along Eastern Parkway,

nities we serve.

tegrity of 10 miles of other large diameter mains.

through

dedicated

icant progress on our three-year project to replace one of

employees

and we used robotic technology to assess the structural in-

customers, shareholder, and the commuCONTENTS
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1.......President’s Message
2.......2018 Company Highlights
21......Financial Viability
26......Independent Auditor’s Report
28 ......Management’s Discussion and Analysis
36 ......Financial Statements
65.......Supplementary Information
75 ......Corporate Information

With the country’s focus on reducing the risk of lead in
drinking water, we were used as a national model in in-

dustry publications. We’ve continued our work to replace
the remaining lead service lines, and we offer an assistance
program that helps customers replace private lines even

though Louisville Water is only responsible for the lines
that connect to a customer’s property.
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py. According to J.D. Power and Associates’ findings in the
Louisville Water tied for first place in Highest Regional Customer Service Index Score in the Midwest region.

In 2018, Louisville Water also launched a new, seven-year
Strategic Business Plan, and our annual report is now organized around the plan’s priorities: Water Quality, Infra-

structure Investment, Financial Viability, Customers and
Stakeholders, Employer of Choice, and Business Transformation. Within each of these priorities, we have put in place

detailed strategies as well as effective ways to measure
our success.

Created with input from employees, customers, other

stakeholders and a leadership team with representatives
from every facet of our operations, the Strategic Business
Plan is a practical yet ambitious plan reflecting our belief
that Louisville Water is more than just a utility. It’s a community asset.

Nearly one million people use Louisville Water’s product ev-

ery day in Louisville Metro and surrounding counties, and
our overarching goal is always to give customers good value. In 2018, the average cost for a household using 4,000

gallons of water a month was $22.25, which is one of the
lowest in the region.

Safety. Trust. Partnership. Quality. Diversity. These are our

core values and they have guided our success this past year
and will continue to guide us as we implement our Strategic Business Plan.

Weathering the Elements
Crews tackled extreme cold and
wet conditions in 2018

L

ouisville Water started 2018 with unusually busy main

break activity. While we expect the winter months to

bring more work for our crews, January’s extreme tempera-

tures (several days in the single digits) caused 238 main
breaks for the month and 316 for the quarter, which was

the highest for a quarter since 2014. The highest number of
main breaks reported in a single day in January was 25. (On

average, we get two or three main breaks reported a day.)

Our crews and engineers did an outstanding job to quickly
and safely repair these water mains.

In February, extremely frigid temperatures gave way to

flooding conditions not seen since 1997. According to the
Courier Journal, 40 billion gallons of rain fell over Louisville
during a five-day stretch. This deluge contributed to 10.47

inches of precipitation in February and caused flooding on
River Road near our Zorn Avenue pumping stations. These

conditions made it difficult for our employees to get to

work, so crew members loaded gear into a small inflatable
boat provided by the Harrods Creek Fire Department, who

Photo by
Marty Pearl

2018 At a Glance

DELIVERING HIGH-QUALITY WATER
Nearly 120 MGD average daily delivery
Highest percentage increase in net income since 2012*
Zero water quality violations
4,233 miles of water main
24,448 fire hydrants
315,288 service connections
54,144 valves

MAINTAINING THE SYSTEM
25.7 total number of miles of main inspected
16.4 number of main breaks per 100 miles of pipe
695 total number of main breaks
17.5 miles of new water main installed
More than 2.2 million miles driven by employees

ferried workers across the floodwaters.

COMMUNITY ASSET

September also logged a record 10.91 inches of rain, ac-

cording the National Weather Service. Both February’s and

Reached almost 60,000 customers through education
and outreach

September’s rain totals contributed to Louisville’s wettest

year on record—we ended 2018 with 68.83 inches of pre-

Hosted more than 33,000 visitors at Louisville Water
Tower Park

flood conditions, our employees met the challenges with

Served almost one million people in 46 zip codes through
our Louisville pure tap® program

cipitation. Whether it was freezing temperatures, rain, or
dedication and ingenuity to keep our safe, high-quality
water flowing.

* despite being the wettest year on record
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Water Quality

L

ouisville’s drinking water excels in quality. Our two

Flow, a monthly magazine from the American Water Works

top 16 in North America for water quality, as noted by

publication and is distributed to 55,000 members. The April

treatment plants continue to be rated as two of the

the Partnership for Safe Water, which is an alliance of several

drinking water organizations. That attention to detail and
a research-based water quality department make it possible to highlight not only the quality but

issue featured our lead and corrosion control programs.
Louisville Water is also featured on the Environmental Pro-

the taste of our water. Louisville Water is

its tap water with a name, and in 2018, we

North America for

the only water utility in the world to brand

2 of the Top of 16 in

celebrated the 21st birthday of Louisville

water quality

tection Agency’s website in a section enti-

tled “Leaders in Reducing Lead in Drinking
Water.” Our lead service line replacement

program is highlighted as one that other

utilities should model. More national nods
included our inclusion in Water Online, an

1997 highlights the quality, innovation and value of water.

industry website that receives more than 144,000 unique

summer. Why a 21st birthday? As one of the region’s most

Water Utilities” featured our work in creating content that

The celebration included events and media throughout the
essential liquids, you might say we’re finally legal.

Maintaining excellent water quality includes eliminating
our known lead service lines. We made significant progress
on our lead service line replacement program in 2018, and

currently have less than 1,000 remaining. We are on track

visitors a month. An article titled “A Model for Drinking
highlights water quality. Louisville Water was also honored
at AWWA’s national conference in June. In 2013, Louisville

Water achieved the Phase III Director’s Award for the distri-

bution system, and in 2018 we were recognized for maintaining that optimization for five years.

to have all eliminated by 2020. This program is focused on

The work at the treatment plants and the distribution sys-

assistance to customers who want to replace a lead line

we launched a new Work and Asset Management (WAM)

replacing our service lines but we’re also offering financial
on their private property through company funds and the
Louisville Water Foundation.

Our lead program received national recognition in 2018
with feature stories in both the April and May issues of Op-
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issue focused on our communication efforts while May’s

Treatment plants are

pure tap®. The campaign that started in

Mayor Greg Fischer
celebrated the 21st
birthday of the branding
of Louisville pure tap®
with us.

Association (AWWA). OpFlow is AWWA’s primary technical
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tem requires careful coordination and, in the fall of 2018,
system. We began the roll-out at the treatment plants and

will ‘go live’ with field operations in 2020. WAM is a critical
piece in our Strategic Business Plan for maintaining our assets in a cost-effective and efficient way.

Infrastructure Investment

H

aving a reliable and sustainable infrastructure is

communication effort that we’ve ever undertaken. A coor-

effort to check the conditions of some of our largest un-

college students has laid the foundation for how we talk

vital to Louisville Water’s operations. The ongoing

derground mains remains a priority year after year. In 2010,
Louisville Water began working with Pure Technologies to
use robotic devices/probes called “Smart Ball®” and “Pipe-

Diver®” to inspect these mains. In July 2018, we invited local
media to learn about PipeDiver as crews tracked a six-foot-

long robotic device for two miles inside the 48-inch main
while it was filled with water. Using tools like PipeDiver
allow engineers to inspect a pipe without emptying the
water and stopping service for thousands of customers. It

also allows us to identify weak spots in our pipe and make
proactive repairs.

In 2018, Louisville Water inspected 25.7 miles of the larger

sized water mains. We expect a water main to be in service
at least 100 years but periodic checks are important to

Crews launch
PipeDiver in
a water main to
collect data.

ensure reliability.

We also made progress on the Eastern Parkway Project,
a three-year program that replaces one of the largest

water mains in our system. This 48-inch diameter pipe
was installed along Eastern Parkway between 1923 and

1930. For most of the project, we are slip-lining a new
42-inch steel pipe inside the existing pipe to prevent digging up a busy highway. In 2018, we completed Phase 2A
and began work on Phase 2B, which includes installing a

new section of pipe around the University of Louisville.
We’ll begin the last phase of the project in the summer of
2019. The Eastern Parkway Project is the largest water main

replacement in our history as well as the largest customer
New Bardstown
Road tank
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dinated effort to reach residents, commuters, tourists and
about large-scale projects in the future.

As a water system that started in 1860, we have miles of

main that are over 100 years old. Next on the list to reha-

bilitate is a section of main on Oak Street, which is an 1890

vintage cast iron 48-inch pipe. We began planning for this
project, which will include work on more than three miles

of main from the intersection of 12th street and Dumesnil
Street to Glenmary Avenue at Grinstead Drive.

In addition to the work on our water mains, we also com-

pleted the installation of a new water storage tank on
Bardstown Road in Fern Creek that will ultimately replace
an existing water storage standpipe located on the same
property. This tank will provide a more reliable supply of

water to help stabilize water pressures and improve water
quality. It is scheduled to be put in service in 2019.

One of the new projects we broke ground on in 2018 was
the Crescent Hill Generator Project. The Crescent Hill Water
Treatment plant has two electrical feeds for the operation
of the plant and pumping station but needs a standby gen-

erator in case of an emergency when the plant loses electrical power. There is a critical need for back-up power at

the Crescent Hill plant—the generator will replace a more
than 50-year-old gas turbine generator at Zorn Avenue that
needs to be removed from service. The generator project
should be complete in 2020.

Customers and Stakeholders

F

rom the airport to the convention center to the

ness meetings. Connecting the community to Louisville

a fountain in 2018 knew who supplied their great-

Museum, where 9,600 students, families, and other visitors

zoo, anyone who filled a water bottle or drank from

tasting water.

Louisville Water raised its profile throughout the community by branding water stations not just with a logo, but with
eye-catching graphics that communicate our commitment

to quality and value, while also having a little fun with our

ing exhibits of historic photographs, films and memorabil-

ia, some of which date from 1860. Visitors discover our contributions to safe drinking water through our innovations
in science and engineering.

A highlight at Louisville Water Tower Park is the Adventures

seven at the Louisville Zoo and six in the Louisville Interna-

munity organizations to provide educational activities for

tional Airport. This brings the total of water stations with a
Louisville Water message to nearly 90.

We also helped protect the environment—one bottle at

a time. For instance, just at the airport, we kept nearly

120,000 disposable plastic bottles out of landfills by letting
visitors refill their reusable water bottles.

We also raised our profile through a wide range of special
community events. A record crowd of 3,200 candy-seeking
ghosts, goblins and superheroes attended Trick or Treat-

ment 2018 at the Crescent Hill Reservoir. This facility also

hosted several Walking Wednesdays that invited the community into the Reservoir’s Gatehouse to learn more about

our history. The Reservoir was even the site of a birthday
bash that launched several weeks of celebration for the 21st
anniversary of the naming of Louisville pure tap®.

Just a few miles up the road at another company facili-

ty, Louisville Water Tower Park, more than 25,000 guests
visited the historic site for festivals, receptions and busi-

page 8

took a tour. The museum offers both permanent and rotat-

product. In all, we branded 21 water stations in the remod-

eled Kentucky International Convention Center as well as

Branded water station at
Kentucky International
Convention Center

Water is the primary focus at the park’s WaterWorks
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in Water Festival, which brought together two dozen comlocal students. Since 2007, the festival has hosted more than
200 school groups, and it’s just one facet of a program that

also sent Louisville Water educators to nearly 150 schools
and community organizations in 2018. These educators offer programs ranging from instruction in effective, flu-fight-

ing hand washing to experiments providing real-world
examples for the schools’ science curricula. Overall, our

education and community programs reached nearly
60,000 people in 2018.

Louisville Water’s largest community outreach is the

Louisville pure tap® program. Nearly one million people at-

tended events where we provided water with mobile water
units, coolers and compostable cups.

At many community events, Louisville Water offered our
refillable pure tap bottles. These have proven very popular

and often can be spotted in the hands of people throughout the community even when they’re not attending a
special event.

The Omni Louisville Hotel, which opened in March, paid

munication hub for account information as well as news,

their rooftop pool and bar area The Water Company. In ad-

site helps customers determine and correct their own

tribute to our great-tasting water and history by naming
Omni Louisville
Hotel

dition, a large stone sign on their first floor now pays homage to the 1910 Louisville Water office building that used to

events, alerts and more. For instance, a new page on the

water quality issues, and there’s a new “Where We’re Work-

ing” section that offers customers details on planned

be located on the hotel site.

construction work.

Over the past few years, Louisville Water has evolved its

For many years, we’ve maintained a sharp focus on cus-

our reach through social media soared with a 49 percent

the summer at the KY/TN Water Professionals Conference.

communication platform with digital channels. In 2018,
increase in followers on Twitter and a 52 percent increase
on Facebook.

We also launched a new website with simple navigation,
clean graphics and concise search capability for an over-

all enhanced customer experience. Fully responsive for

tomer service, and these efforts were recognized during
Megan Cox, Metering Field Operations Manager, re-

ceived an Outstanding Customer Service Award. Also in

2018, we implemented improvements to our call center,
resulting in lower call abandonment rates and shorter
hold times.

mobile phones and tablets, the website is a primary com-

2018 Outreach
Schools: 146 (highest number in the history of
the program)
Education: 60,000 students, senior citizens and
other community members
Pure tap program: Nearly 1 million people
Louisville Water
Tower Park
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Our mascot,
Tapper

National audience: more than 6 million people
(via branding in national magazines, news
stories, and radio interviews)
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Employer of Choice

L

ouisville Water is committed to being an Employer of

Choice, a place where people desire to work and de-

velop fulfilling careers. While we’ve always had a focus on

a culture that engages a talented and diverse workforce,
the new Strategic Business Plan has a greater emphasis
on how we achieve that goal. In 2018, we began evaluating

our compensation package, traditional and non-traditional benefits, continuous learning and development oppor-

tunities and work-life balance. Our community branding

is directly related to this goal and moving forward, a team
of employees is updating how we present ourselves to pro-

but never a kitten.

Union members like Harper and Stone comprise nearly half

of our workforce. American Federation of State, County and
Municipal Employees (AFSCME) Local 1683 Union President

Adam Carter and Louisville Water President Spencer Bruce

signed a new ‘Partnership Statement’ between Louisville
Water and its union in August. It’s a pledge to continue
working toward improvement for Louisville Water and
its employees.

spective new hires and how we reach a more diverse tal-

A strong partnership with our employees dates to the

number of retirements in the next decade, and we must

Courier Journal, celebrated its 150th anniversary in 2018, it

ent pool. Like many utilities, Louisville Water will see a large

company’s charter in 1854. When the local paper, the

prepare now for a changing workforce.

led us to wonder where we rank among Louisville’s oldest

Our employees spend their days working in the community, and they can encounter some unique situations. Louis-

ville Water was featured in local and national media when

businesses. A little research found that Louisville Water is
in a two-way tie with J. B. Hilliard, W. L. Lyons for Louisville’s
ninth oldest business.

a fire hydrant crew discovered a trapped kitten. Typically,

One thing that hasn’t changed since 1854 is our focus on

tant Jimmy Stone spend their days helping maintain the

Leadership Team tell them the goal is to leave at the end

broken hydrant was a routine one—routine until Harper

A company-wide focus on safety has created a culture of

and saw a kitten, an orange tabby that was trapped five

ees working together for accountability. Louisville Water’s

and Stone immediately called for help, and Metro Animal

injury rate finished right at the national average at 4.05

on hydrants for years, and they’ve found some unusual

two years.

Plumber Leader Chad Harper and Plumber Leader’s Assis-

safety. Employees often hear members of the Executive

company’s 24,000 public fire hydrants. The call to repair a

of the day in the same condition as they started their day.

looked into the hole where the orange hydrant once stood

looking out for each other with management and employ-

feet below the ground at the bottom of the hydrant. Harper

Occupational Safety Health Administration recordable

Services came to the rescue. Harper and Stone have worked

but we did experience more injuries in 2018 than the past

Kitten rescued
from hydrant
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things before, including snakes, toys and miniature cars—
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Our Louisville Water team took on several initiatives to get

Another company-wide focus is a commitment to our com-

we’d like to see. Some of these included:

success, raising more than $154,000 through employee

our safety awareness and performance back on the track
Toys for Tots
donation

• Safety discussions are the first topic at every meeting
of the Executive Leadership Team

• Launched a “keep your eye on safety” program that included safety glasses and a first aid kit to every employ-

ee with a message of the importance of safety on the
job and at home

• Regular conversations with management and front-

line employees in response to our injury increase with
a focus on expectations for each person’s role in a safe
environment

• Extending the safety message to office employees with
a “safety blitz” in the company’s parking garage to

promote safe habits for driving and seat belt and cell
phone usage
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munity. The 2018 Combined Giving Campaign was a major

payroll deductions, one-time contributions, and events. The
money benefited four company-supported charities: Fund

for the Arts, Metro United Way, Louisville Water Foundation,
and Water for People.

Employees didn’t just give back to the community in dollars. During 2018, employees donated 3,866 hours volunteering at over 130 organizations. Industry groups like
the American Water Works Association and the American

Society of Civil Engineers benefit from our employee’s ex-

pertise. Community organizations like WaterStep, Kentucky
Dental Foundation, American Red Cross, Family & Children’s

Place, Handbags for Hope Purse Drive and the Mayor’s Toys
for Tots Drive included Louisville Water employees.

Business Transformation

O

ne Water is an effort with Louisville Water and

partnership is key to economic growth and reliable ser-

es and identify cost-savings and revenue opportunities.
Currently, the two utilities share resources in Fleet, Infor-

District No. 2 needed to temporarily remove one of its

treatment plants from service, we were able to deliver ad-

Louisville MSD in which departments share resourc-

Work on
Shelbyville main

mation Technology, Procurement, Customer Service, and
Communications.

The One Water effort progressed this year with the creation and approval of an updated One Water Strategic

Plan. The plan focuses on improving every customer experience, partnering for progress, driving revenue growth

completed its work. Through an agreement with Hardin
County Water District No. 1, we provided our drinking water
to customers who live in Meade County. This water district

purchases a supply from Louisville Water and then delivers
that water to Meade County and the city of Westpoint.

Louisville Water’s footprint in Shelby County will grow in

million annually.

city of Shelbyville. We’ve installed approximately 10 miles

In 2018, two shared opportunities had a community focus.
Louisville Water and Louisville MSD hosted their first joint

career fair, which brought 180 people to learn about work-

ing at the utilities. A joint education effort, “River to River,”
highlights the urban water cycle. More than 1,900 middle

and high school students participated in the new education program that’s delivered in local schools, the WaterWorks Museum and community settings.

Creating job growth and community investment through
economic development is a key component of business
transformation. A team of employees is focused on expand-

ing our regional service, building strategic partnerships to
highlight Louisville Water’s story and developing products
and services.

In 2018, wholesale water sales reached a record level with
$5.7 million. We provide water to utilities and cities in
Bullitt, Hardin, Nelson, Shelby and Spencer counties. This
page 16

ditional water through our partnership while the district

in both organizations and creating efficiencies. One Water

has produced benefits, savings and revenue of around $14

Student taking part
in the “River to
River” program

vice in the region. For example, when Hardin County Water
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2019 as we finish a $16 million project to connect to the

of a 24-inch diameter water main along Interstate 64 from
the Jefferson/Shelby County line to connect with Shel-

byville Municipal Water & Sewer Commission (Shelbyville
Water). This project builds on an existing partnership as
we already provide service to two of the water suppliers

in Shelby County. The new pipeline will provide up to seven million gallons of additional water daily for Shelbyville

Water and puts the city in a good position for economic
growth and reliability.

One of our largest water users by category is distillers. Bour-

bon is one of the top visitor attractions to Louisville, and 15
local distillers use our water to create bourbons that are

shipped and sipped around the world. Louisville Water has
created partnerships within the industry to highlight water’s critical role in the Kentucky bourbon experience. The
Frazier History Museum opened a new Kentucky Bourbon
Trail® Welcome Center and “Spirit of Kentucky” exhibit

in 2018. The exhibit prominently features water, notably

Louisville Water, as an integral ingredient in the recipe

miles of mains in our system is more than 4,200. That’s the

Fort Nelson Distillery also tells the story of Louisville Wa-

back three times. New water mains often are installed as

for great bourbon. Just down the road, the new Michter’s

ter’s connection to the industry. A display in the visitor’s

center highlights the importance of water in this area to
bourbon—the limestone shelf and our water quality team

help create water that is low in iron and high in calcium,
two attributes essential to the taste and color of the perfect
bourbon. We are bourbon’s best friend.

Working alongside key industries and strategic partners, we
highlighted Louisville Water’s story, our liquid asset, across

the nation. We joined partners in Chicago and here at home
to connect with economic developers who are looking to

place businesses in the region. Our work is important to
growing the regional economy. In 2018, a total of 17.5 miles
of new water main was installed—the overall number of

Louisville Water display
at Michter’s Fort Nelson
Distillery
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equivalent of driving from Louisville to Disney World and
part of real estate developers’ new subdivisions or commercial projects, and Louisville Water’s engineering team works
with developers and their design professionals.

Business transformation also includes innovation. For over
a decade, Louisville Water has embraced the idea of “strat-

egy innovation,” where a team of employees focus on new

products and services that compliment our mission. In 2018,
we completed initial research into a product our scientists

have developed. The pure spout™ filter attaches to a traditional drinking water fountain and helps maintain water

quality in facilities with aging or compromised plumbing.
We’ll pilot this product in the fall of 2019 and depending on
the results, develop a go-to-market strategy.

Financial Viability

Historical Review
2014

(000s)

2015

2016

2017

2018

Water Revenue

$ 151,779

$ 159,965

$ 162,299

$ 167,862

$ 175,029

Other Operating Revenue

$ 14,117

$ 14,421

$ 15,541

$ 16,703

$ 16,929

Operating Expenses*

$ 116,297

$ 122,672

$ 125,493

$ 130,474

$ 137,624

GASB 68 Pension Expense Adjustment 		

$

$

$

$

Net Non-Operating Expenses

$ (7,206)

$ (6,303)

$ (7,497)

$ (7,296)

$ (4,751 )

Net Income before Distributions
and Contributions

$ 42,392

$ 42,488

$ 41,255

$ 38,906

$ 41,052

2,923

3,595

7,889

8,531

L

ouisville Water had a strong financial performance in

technology. Operating and Maintenance Expenses were

the highest since 2012. This successful performance was
achieved despite the negative financial impacts of record

breaks caused by extreme cold weather early in the year.
Overtime wages and contractual services were most signifi-

2018, showing an increase in net income of 5.5 percent,

setting rainfall and extremely cold weather in 2018. Total

shareholder value provided to Louisville Metro through the
dividend and free water service totaled $37.2 million, an increase from $36.4 million in 2017.

Water consumption in 2018 was 33.8 billion gallons, with

*Does not include GASB 68 pension expense adjustment.

wholesale and commercial categories driving an overall in-

Financial Performance — Operations

crease of 1.1 percent over 2017. Growth in wholesale water

consumption was particularly impressive at 15 percent, re-

flecting the continued success of Louisville Water’s strategy

OPERATIONS
(amount in millions of gallons)

Water Delivered to Mains
(Net System Delivery)

TOTAL CONSUMPTION
(in billion gallons)

33.8

2018

of expanding its regional footprint outside of the Louisville
2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

43,302

44,122

42,229

42,723

43,570

Average Daily Pumpage

119

121

115

117

119

Maximum Daily Pumpage

155

162

145

161

152

Percent of Water Metered

79%

79%

79%

79%

78%

Metro area. The growth in these categories was partially
offset by declines in residential and irrigation usage, which

were negatively impacted by Louisville’s wettest year in recorded history. Alternative lines of revenue are another key
component in our strategy to offset declines in retail water
sales. In 2018, revenue growth from home warranty, sewer

billing and consulting services drove an overall increase in
Other Operating Revenue of 1.4 percent.

33.4

2017

Operating Expenses grew 5.6 percent in 2018, primarily

creased due to additional investment in infrastructure and

34.1

2014
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ing and Maintenance Expenses. Depreciation Expense in34.6

2015

30

driven by increases in Depreciation Expense and Operat-

33.5

2016

32

34

36

38
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negatively affected by an unusually large number of main

cantly impacted by the high main break activity.

Louisville Water continued its commitment to investing in

our infrastructure in 2018, spending a record $102.7 million
on its capital program, an increase of 26 percent over the

previous year. The two largest projects in 2018, accounting
for a combined 17 percent of capital funds spent, involved
the installation of a water main along Interstate 64 to
Shelbyville and Phase 2 of the Eastern Parkway Project.

In the coming year, we will continue to focus on strategies
to counteract the negative financial impact of falling retail

water consumption. We anticipate another year of strong
growth in wholesale water sales. We will begin delivering
water to Shelbyville Water, and will have a full year of sales

to Hardin County Water District No. 1, which came online in

mid-2018. Alternative sources of revenue, particularly innovative new products and services, will be a key part of our
overall strategy in 2019 and future years as we continually

look for opportunities to replace lost retail water sales with

other types of revenue. These initiatives will be critical to
maintaining and advancing Louisville Water’s long-term
financial viability.

Financial Performance — Operations
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2018 WATER REVENUE

AVERAGE RESIDENTIAL MONTHLY BILL

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE

(based upon median usage of 4,000 gallons per month)

3% Wholesale

(in millions)

2% Metro Govt
8% Fire Hydrants

$20

2% Private Fire Services

$16.7

$17.0

$25

$19.32

$20.11

$21.51

$20.81

$22.25
$15.5

$15.5

6% Irrigation
7% Industrial

$16.9

$15
$14.0

30% Commercial

$14.1

$14.4

$10

42% Residential

$12.5

$5

$0

SALE OF WATER
number of customers
at December 31

Residential

Commercial

Industrial

Irrigation

Fire Services
Wholesale

TOTAL

Public Fire Hydrants
Metro Govt

TOTAL

GRAND TOTALS
page 22

consumption - ytd
(1,000) gallons

2017

250,056

248,565

12,563,081

12,638,288

$ 72,431

$ 69,940

425

415

3,960,879

3,949,685

12,449

12,066

4,562

54,023

49,561

23,087

2018

23,032

13,202

13,392

8

8

4,619

291,397
24,448

637

25,085

316,482

289,974
24,332

634

24,966

314,940

2017

11,928,355
1,762,530

2,465,594

32,734,462

-

1,057,088

1,057,088

33,791,550

2018

11,658,185

1,940,813

2,143,461

32,379,993

-

1,034,984

1,034,984

33,414,977

52,076

10,707

3,451

5,734

156,848

14,143
4,038
18,181

$ 175,029

2015

2016

2017

2018

2014

2015

2016

TOTAL CONTRIBUTIONS TO LOUISVILLE METRO

revenue - ytd
(in 000s)

2018

$11.0

2014

(in millions)

2017

$40

49,270

$30

11,048

3,268

$36.4

$37.1

$36.8

$36.4

$37.2

$15.8

$16.7

$17.0

$17.4

$18.2

$20.6

$20.4

$19.8

$19.0

$19.0

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

Water and Fire Service
Provided in Lieu of Taxes

$20

4,885

150,477

13,567

$10

3,818

17,385

$ 167,862

$0
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Dividends Declared

2017

2018

Financial Performance — Capital

Financial Performance — Capital

2018 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

CAPITAL BIDS-ESTIMATES VERSUS ACTUAL CONTRACTS

2019 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

(in millions)

2018 Actual Contracts 	
Growth-related Improvements

17%

— $20.3

2018 Bid Estimates
6%

— $27.8

2017 Actual Contracts

— $53.7

2017 Bid Estimates
New Technology

21%

58%

2016 Actual Contracts

36%

Self-Financing Improvements

4%

— $29.0

2015 Actual Contracts

— $28.7

2015 Bid Estimates
53%

—$27.1

2014 Actual Contracts

— $38.8

2014 Bid Estimates

— $39.6

$0.0

2018 CONTRIBUTIONS IN AID OF CONSTRUCTION

$17.5

$35.0

$52.5

$70.0

TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAM AND EXPENDITURES

(in millions)

(in millions)

$12

$140

$11
$10

— $28.3

2016 Bid Estimates

4%

Infrastructure Renewal

— $61.8

$10.3
$9.2

$10.4

$10.8

$120
$107.7

$9.4

$9

$94.8

$100

$96.6

$111.0

$104.8

$8

$80
$7

$60

$6
$5
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2014

2015

2016

2017

2018
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$40

$69.3

$69.7

$64.8

2014

$83.2

$83.7

2015

2016

Capital Program

2017

2018

Expenditures

Board of Water Works
Louisville Water Company
Louisville, Kentucky

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Louisville Water Company (the “Company”), a component

unit of the Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related

notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Company’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluat-

ing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Louisville Water Company as of December 31, 2018, and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows thereof for
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, during the year ended December 31, 2018, the Company adopted new
accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than

Pensions, which resulted in a restatement of the Company’s January 1, 2018 net position in the amount of ($19,903,810). Our
opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
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Other Matters

Prior-Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in total but not at the level of

detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. We have previously audited
the Company’s 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on the financial statements of

the Company in our report dated June 13, 2018. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements
from which it has been derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, the schedule of the Company’s proportionate share of the net pension liability, the schedule of the net pension

liability, the schedule of the Company’s proportionate share of the net other postemployment benefits (“OPEB”) liability,
the schedule of the Company’s pension contributions, and the schedule of the Company’s OPEB contributions as listed in
the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part

of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an

essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management

about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s

responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic

financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Louisville Water Company’s basic financial statements. The supplemental schedule of investments, summarized sched-

ule of bond issues, schedule of outstanding bond indebtedness and annual debt service requirements, and schedule of
operating and maintenance expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The supplemental schedule of investments, summarized schedule of bond issues, schedule of outstanding bond indebted-

ness and annual debt service requirements, and schedule of operating and maintenance expenses are the responsibility

of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of

the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information

directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplemental schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.
Crowe Horwath LLP
Louisville, Kentucky
June 3, 2019
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• Operating Revenues increased by $7.4 million, or 4.0%, due to a water rate increase of 3.5% effective January 1, 2018,
and growth in other operating revenue from home warranty services, sewer billing services for other utilities and

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

consulting services. Water sales in 2018 of 33.8 billion gallons were up 377 million gallons or 1.1% higher than 2017

The following management’s discussion and analysis of Louisville Water Company’s (the “Company” or “Louisville Water”) financial performance provides an overview of the Company’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018 as compared with the prior year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual financial report consists of four parts: Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Financial Statements, Required

sales of 33.4 billion gallons.

• Operating Expenses increased by $7.8 million, or 5.6%, primarily as a result of increases in Depreciation and Amortization Expense of $1.9 million and Operating and Maintenance Expense of $4.3 million over 2017 amounts.

• Net Non-Operating Expense decreased by $2.5 million or 34.9%, due to lower interest expense on bonds, increased
levels of capitalized interest and higher earnings on investments.

Supplementary Information and Supplementary Information. The Financial Statements also include notes that provide ad-

ditional details and are an integral part of the statements. The Supplementary Information further explains and supports
the information within the Financial Statements.

The Financial Statements of the Company report information using accounting methods similar to those used by pri-

• Net Income before Distributions and Contributions increased by $2.1 million, or 5.5%.
• Dividends Paid and Payable were essentially flat at $19 million, as the three-year average of adjusted net income
utilized for the dividend calculation did not change materially. Net income declined in the first two years of the

vate-sector water utility companies, except for the reporting of contributions in aid of construction, equity capital and

three-year period as a result of higher pension expense, but these declines were offset by higher net income

retained earnings. These statements offer short-term and long-term financial information about the Company’s activities.
The Statement of Net Position includes all of the Company’s assets and liabilities. It provides information about the nature

and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations owed to outside entities and individuals (liabilities).
It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital structure of Louisville Water and assessing the liquidity and financial
flexibility of the Company.

All of the current year revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in
Net Position. This statement measures the Company’s operations over the past year and can be used to help determine
whether the Company has successfully met its financial objectives, recovered all of its costs through its water rates and
other charges, increased its net position and maintained credit-worthiness.

The Statement of Cash Flows provides information about the Company’s cash receipts and cash payments, along with net

changes in cash resulting from operating, financing and investing activities. The statement provides information on the
sources and uses of cash and the changes in the balance of cash during the year.
Summary of 2018 Performance

Louisville Water achieved strong financial results in 2018, overcoming the negative impact to water sales of the wettest

year on record in the Louisville area. Total water consumption was up by 377 million gallons, driven by growth in wholesale
and commercial categories. Regionalization and alternative revenue streams continue to be key strategies in replacing rev-

enue lost as a result of declining retail water consumption. Both strategies showed positive results in 2018, with wholesale
water sales and other operating revenue growing by 17.4% and 1.4%, respectively.

Year-end net income before distributions and contributions totaled $41.1 million in 2018. The resulting dividend of $19
million, combined with free water and fire protection valued at $18.2 million, provided a total shareholder value of $37.2
million, a 2% increase over 2017.

Financial Highlights

• Total Net Position increased by $13 million, or 1.4%. Excluding the impact of a prior period adjustment related to

the implementation of GASB 75, Total Net Position increased by $32.9 million or 3.50%, primarily due to funds generated from operations, net of dividend paid to our shareholder.
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in 2018.

Statement of Net Position

Total Net Position increased by $13 million, or 1.4%, in 2018 (see Figure 1). Excluding the impact of a prior period adjustment

related to the implementation of GASB 75, the increase in Total Net Position is $32.9 million or 3.50%. The largest portion

of Net Position is Net Utility Plant, which increased by $60.3 million in 2018 as a result of additional investment in capital

assets. The capital assets were funded by the 2015 bond issue, cash generated from operations and Contributions in Aid
of Construction from developers, customers, and governmental agencies. Current Assets fell by $21.5 million in 2018, due

to a decrease in Short-term Liquid Investments. Noncurrent Assets declined by $18.1 million as a result of a decline in Investments. Funds received from the reduction in Short-term Liquid Investments and Investments were utilized to fund the

Company’s capital program. Current Liabilities fell only slightly in 2018, while Long-term Liabilities increased by $5.7 million.
The increase in Long-term Liabilities was a result of an increase in the Net Pension Liability partially offset by principal paid
on Bonds.

Figure 1

Condensed Statement of Net Position
Current Assets

2018

$ 95,880,250

$

2017

DIFFERENCE

117,399,509

$ (21,519,259 )

PERCENT

(18.3%)

Noncurrent Assets

37,409,831

55,530,341

(18,120,510 )

(32.6%)

Deferred Outflow of Resources

24,513,501

23,184,928

1,328,573

5.7%

Net Utility Plant

1,212,780,234

1,152,494,380

60,285,854

5.2%

Total Assets and Deferrals

1,370,583,816

1,348,609,158

21,974,658

1.6%

49,701,110

49,880,168

364,350,904

358,650,143

5,700,761

1.6%

Deferred Inflow of Resources

6,718,698

3,218,422

3,500,276

108.8%

Total Liabilities and Deferrals

420,770,712

411,748,733

9,021,979

2.2%

$ 949,813,104

$ 936,860,425

$ 12,952,679

1.4%

Current Liabilities
Long-term Liabilities

Total Net Position
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(179,058 )

(0.4% )

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenues grew by $7.4 million, or 4.0%, in 2018 (see Figure 2) due to increased water revenue attributable to in-

creased rates and higher consumption. Total water consumption increased by 377 million gallons, or 1.1%, in 2018. However,
despite this increase over the prior year, 2018 is one of the lowest water consumption years in the last five decades. Water–
saving fixtures, appliances and equipment, in both residences and businesses, continue to drive declining water consump-

tion in Louisville and across the country. Louisville Water’s regionalization strategy has been instrumental in offsetting a
portion of that lost consumption. In 2018, growth in wholesale water sales completely offset declines in residential and

Figure 2

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Operating Revenue

2018

$ 191,958,588

$

2017

184,565,198

$

DIFFERENCE

7,393,390

PERCENT

4.0%

Operating Expenses

146,155,730

138,363,335

7,792,395

5.6%

Net Operating Revenue

45,802,858

46,201,863

(399,005)

(0.9%)

(2,545,189)

(34.9%)

irrigation customer categories resulting in the overall increase in water consumption. This, together with growth in other

Net Non-Operating
Expense

4,750,822

7,296,011

sulted in the increase in Operating Revenues.

Net Income Before
Distributions and
Contributions

41,052,036

38,905,852

Actuarial Adjustment; Depreciation and Amortization; Water and Fire Service Provided in Lieu of Taxes; and Loss from Sale

Dividends Paid and
Payable

18,997,197

19,024,825

(27,628 )

(0.1%)

tion and Amortization and Operating and Maintenance Expenses. Depreciation and Amortization increased by $1.9 million

Contributions in aid of
Construction

10,801,650

10,407,789

393,861

3.8%

Change in Net Position

32,856,489

30,288,816

2,567,673

8.5%

936,860,425

906,571,609

30,288,816

3.3%

operating revenue related to home warranty services, sewer billing services for other utilities and consulting services, re-

The key components of Operating Expenses are: Operating and Maintenance Expenses; GASB Pension and OPEB Expense
and Salvage of Retired Assets. Operating Expenses increased by $7.8 million, or 5.6% in 2018 as a result of higher Deprecia-

due to additional investment in capital assets. Operating and Maintenance Expenses increased $4.3 million due to higher

labor and labor related costs, contractual services, fleet, equipment maintenance and chemical and power costs, offset by
reductions in insurance and materials and supplies. The extremely high number of main breaks that occurred early in the
year as a result of extremely cold weather drove up Operating and Maintenance Expenses this year.

Net Position – Beginning
of Year

Net Non-Operating Expense (non-operating expense less non-operating income) decreased by $2.5 million or 34.9% in

Restatement for GASB 75
Implementation

(19,903,810 )

along with higher earnings on investments.

Net Position, Beginning of Year,
as Restated

916,956,615

Change in Net Position

32,856,489		

2018, due to principal repayments on bonds and increased capitalized interest, which resulted in lower interest expense,
Net Income before Distributions and Contributions increased by $2.1 million, or 5.5%, in 2018, primarily due increased rev-

enue from the water sales and growth in Other Operating Revenue, partially offset by higher Operating Expenses. The

formula for computing the dividend, as established by covenant in the Series 2009 Bond Resolution (the Master Bond Resolution), is 50% of the average of current year and prior two fiscal years’ net income after certain stated adjustments. Threeyear averaging is used to compensate for the volatility in net income that results principally from the unpredictability of

water consumption tied to the effects of weather. Dividends Paid and Payable for 2018 was essentially flat at $19.0 million.

Net Position – End of Year

$ 949,813,104

906,571,609
30,288,816
$ 936,860,425

2,146,184

(19,903,810)
10,385,006
2,567,673		
$ 12,952,679

5.5%

1.15%
8.5%
1.4%

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash at the end of 2018 was $5.7 million higher than at the end of 2017 (see Figure 3).
• Cash from Operating Activities was $96.3 million, decreasing by $3.4 million as compared to the prior year. More

Contributions in Aid of Construction are comprised of: pipeline contributions from developers for water main extensions

cash was received from customers compared to 2017, but that increase was offset by higher cash paid to employ-

and from governmental agencies for water main relocations; service installation fees from customers; apportionment war-

ees, suppliers and others.

rant fees and tapping fees from customers to extend water service to unserved areas; and system development charges

• Cash used by Capital and Related Financing Activities was $118.8 million in 2018, up from $101.0 million in 2017, as

from customers for growth-related expansion. The level of capital contributions varies from year to year and is affected by

a result of an increase in funds expended for capital investments.

economic cycles. These types of projects are fully funded or nearly fully funded by outside entities in advance of construction. Contributions in Aid of Construction increased by $394,000, or 3.8%, from the previous year.

• Cash provided by Investing Activities was $47.8 million in 2018, compared to $16.8 million in 2017. Late in 2017, the
Company invested a significant amount of funds that subsequently matured in 2018, providing a higher level
of cash.
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In addition to the amounts held in unrestricted Cash and Investments, Louisville Water also held funds in restricted capital
and bond related reserves totaling $32.9 million, reported as part of Restricted, Expendable Bond Service Accounts in Current Assets and Restricted Reserves in Noncurrent Assets on the Statement of Net Position and described in Note 3.

Debt Administration

As of December 31, 2018, the Company has principal outstanding of $33.7 million for the Series 2009A Bonds, $66.8 million

for the Series 2009B Bonds, $55.9 million for the Series 2014A Bonds, $111.8 million for the Series 2015 Bonds and $1.3 million
for the ARRA loan for a total of $269.5 million (Note 8). As shown in Figure 5, the Company’s debt service coverage was

Figure 3

1.95 times in 2018, an increase from the prior year. The Series 2009A and 2009B Bonds are not insured, callable beginning

Condensed Statement of Cash Flows
2018

2017

DIFFERENCE

$ 99,705,250

$ (3,356,898)

PERCENT

CASH FLOWS FROM

Operating activities

$ 96,348,352

(3.3%)

Non-Capital
Financing Activities

(19,651,325)

(19,843,506 )

Capital and Related
Activities

(118,812,770)

(100,965,241 )

(17,847,529)

Investing Activities

47,832,043

16,796,821

31,035,222

184.8%

Net Change in Cash

5,716,300

(4,306,676)

10,022,976

232.7%

Cash, beginning of year

9,380,355

13,687,031

(4,306,676)

$  15,096,655

$   9,380,355

Cash, end of year

192,181

$   5,716,300

1.0%
(17.7%)

(31.5%)
60.9%

Capital Assets

Louisville Water uses a five-year Capital Improvement Program (“CIP”) that is updated annually. Every five years, a twenty-year facility plan is prepared by our Consulting Engineer. The most recent Facilities Plan was prepared by CH2M in the

in 2019 and carry ratings of Aaa from Moody’s and ratings of AAA from Standard & Poor’s. The Series 2014 Bonds are not

insured, callable beginning in 2022 and carry ratings of Aaa from Moody’s and ratings of AAA from Standard & Poor’s. The
Series 2015 Bonds are not insured, callable beginning in 2025 and carry ratings of Aaa from Moody’s and ratings of AAA
from Standard & Poor’s.
Figure 5

Debt Service Coverage
Income Available for
Debt Service
Current Aggregate Net
Debt Service
Coverage Times

2018

2017

DIFFERENCE

$ 58,257,092

$ 56,956,790

$ 1,300,302

29,871,220

30,124,292

1.95

1.89

(253,072)
.06

PERCENT

2.3%
(0.8%)
3.2%

The Company’s debt rating is among the highest in the United States for water utility revenue bonds.
Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

latter part of 2015 and was adopted by the Board of Water Works in January 2016. Development of the CIP is based on the

Management believes that while the nationwide trend of declining water consumption has moderated to some extent, it

anticipated capital expenditures for a total of ten years. The Company’s current Facilities Plan covers the years from 2016

revenue growth via both traditional and non-traditional avenues to offset the negative impact of lower water sales. The

in improvements during 2019-2023.

execution of new wholesale contracts. Management will continue to actively pursue these opportunities. The Company

Company’s current Facilities Plan and recommendations from the biennial inspection of facilities. The CIP also identifies

will continue to be one of the Company’s most challenging issues. Management has implemented strategies to enhance

through 2035. The CIP approved by the Board of Water Works in late 2018 shows the Company plans to invest $501 million

Company has had notable success in its regionalization efforts, through additional sales to existing customers and the

The Company spent $102.7 million on its capital program in 2018, with the largest portion being spent on infrastructure

renewal. As shown in Figure 4, total investment in Utility Plant was $1.2 billion as of the end of 2018, an increase of $60.3
million from the prior year. Infrastructure renewal projects account for 53% of the planned 2019 capital expenditures. In

2019, the Company will continue to make significant investments in main replacement and rehabilitation, transmission
condition assessment and rehabilitation, lead service renewals and technology.

Capital assets, net
Capital assets not being
depreciated
Utility plant, net
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and strengths, focusing on innovative new products and services.

Management believes that the 2019 Budget adequately addresses all revenue requirements. Water rates increased for

retail water service by 3.9% on January 1, 2019. Water rates for wholesale customers are recommended to increase on July 1,
Computation of Stockholder’s Equity

Condensed Summary of Capital Assets

Less accumulated
depreciation

billing services. Management will seek new growth opportunities that capitalize on our existing competencies, expertise

2019. Rate changes for five wholesale customers are subject to approval by the Kentucky Public Service Commission.

Figure 4

Capital assets

has also had positive results with non-traditional revenue initiatives such as its service line protection program and sewer

2018

$ 1,656,178,440
(566,913,150)

2017

$ 1,578,013,147
(529,193,647)

DIFFERENCE

PERCENT

Stockholder’s equity for Louisville Water is no longer published in the audited financial statements following adoption of

5.0%

GASB 34 in 2002. Using the common stock, retained earnings, and total equity capital reported in the 2001 audited finan-

(37,719,503)

(7.1% )

financial statements for subsequent years, Figure 6 below shows management’s computation of stockholder’s equity for

$ 78,165,293

1,089,265,290

1,048,819,500

40,445,790

3.9%

123,514,944

103,674,880

19,840,064

19.1%

$ 1,212,780,234

$ 1,152,494,380

$ 60,285,854

5.2%

cial statements and using Income before Distributions and Contributions less Dividends Paid and Payable from audited
the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017.
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COVERAGE
CAPACITY TO MAKE DEBT SERVICE PAYMENTS
2017
2018
				

Figure 6

Computation of Stockholder’s Equity
2018

Total Equity Capital Beginning of Year

$ 596,181,191

2017

DIFFERENCE

$ 576,300,164

$ 19,881,027

PERCENT

3.4%

Plus Income Before
Distributions and
Contributions

41,052,036

38,905,852

Less Dividends Paid and
Payable

18,997,197

19,024,825

Total Equity Capital - End of
Year

618,236,030

596,181,191

22,054,839

3.7%

Less Cumulative Deposits to
Infrastructure Replacement
Reserve

53,428,244

52,553,244

875,000

1.7%

$ 564,807,786

$ 543,627,947

$ 21,179,839

3.9%

Stockholder’s Equity Eligible
for Return Computation

2,146,184

5.5%

(27,628)

2019
BUDGET

Debt Service
Income Available for Debt Service / 				
Coverage
Debt Service
1.89
1.95
2.01
					
Section 603
Rate Covenant

Net Revenue / Max Agg. Debt
Service

Debt Service Safety
Margin

(O&M Expense + Debt Service) /
(Operating Revenue +
Non-Operating Revenue)

(0.1%)

(Net Income – Infrastructure Reserve
Replacement (“IRR”) + Bond Reserve
Adjustment) / Stockholder Equity
Eligible for Return

Return on Net
Net Income / Net Utility Plant
Utility Plant		

Current
Target
>2.0

281%

291%

234%

>130%

43.87%

44.18%

44.21%

>30%

2018

2019
BUDGET

TARGET

6.60%

7.14%

6.50%

>7.5%

3.38%

3.38%

3.23%

>3.5%

21.08%

21.39%

19.94%

>20%

PROFITABILITY
PROFITABILITY OF THE COMPANY
2017
			

Return on Equity

TARGET

Net Income before Distributions and Contributions for 2018 was $41,052,036. Certain stated adjustments are made to Net

Net Profit Margin

Net Income / Operating Revenue

return on equity computations. For 2018, Adjusted Net Income was $40,322,464. The return on equity earned by Louisville

DIVIDEND PAYOUT

MEASUREMENT OF DISTRIBUTION OF
2017
2018
PROFIT AS A DIVIDEND 			

Income before Distributions and Contributions to arrive at Adjusted Net Income, which is utilized for the dividend and
Water in 2018 was 7.1%.

Dividend Payout

Comparative Analysis of Financial Results

To optimize long-term financial viability, Louisville Water management plans for and monitors five groups of financial met-

rics: liquidity, capitalization, coverage, profitability and dividend payout. Figure 7 below shows management’s computation
of certain financial ratios within each of these groups of metrics.

CAPITALIZATION

ACCESS READILY AVAILABLE ASSETS TO
2017
2018
MEET NEAR-TERM OBLIGATIONS 			

(Cash + Short-Term Liquid Inv.) /
(O&M Expense / 365)

446

317

RELIANCE ON DEBT FINANCING FOR
2017
2018
CAPITAL INVESTMENTS 			

2019
BUDGET

TARGET

49.15%

(Water in Lieu of Taxes + Dividends) /
Operating Revenue
19.75%

19.37%

18.96%

725

>250

2019
BUDGET

Company’s finances and to show the Company’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this

report or need additional financial information, contact the Office of the Vice-President, Finance – Treasurer at Louisville
Water Company, 550 South Third Street, Louisville, KY 40202.

TARGET

Debt to
Net Utility Plant

Debt / Net Utility Plant

23.38%

22.22%

28.73%

<35%

Debt to
Capitalization

Debt / (Debt + Net Position)

23.57%

22.10%

27.29%

<24%
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47.28%

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, creditors and stockholder with a general overview of the

Comparative Analysis of Financial Results
Days of Funded
Operations

52.99%

Contacting the Company’s Financial Management

Figure 7
LIQUIDITY

Total Transfers

Dividends Declared /
(Net Income - IRR)

2019
BUDGET

page 35

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

December 31, 2018 and 2017

December 31, 2018 and 2017
2018

ASSETS

2017

2018

Liabilities and Net Position

Current Assets
		 Cash

$

15,096,655

$

9,380,355

		 Short-term liquid investments

52,880,293

80,890,608

		 Cash and short-term liquid investments

67,976,948

90,270,963

12,533,216

12,776,954

529,087

518,777

6,800,448

7,019,000

		 Restricted, expendable bond service accounts

2,916,543

2,723,738

		 Other current assets

4,342,778

3,356,715

781,230

733,362

95,880,250

117,399,509

1,212,780,234

1,152,494,380

		 Accounts receivable, net
		 Contracts receivable, current portion
		 Materials and supplies

		 Accrued interest receivable
			 Total Current Assets
Utility Plant, net of accumulated depreciation
Noncurrent Assets
		 Investments

-

18,755,409

29,979,594

29,488,180

		 Non-utility property

2,436,284

2,520,447

		 Unamortized bond issuance costs

1,519,694

1,764,434

		 Contracts receivable

692,924

689,331

		 Preliminary engineering charges

279,507

358,441

		 Prepaid regulatory assets

2,501,828

1,954,099

			 Total Noncurrent Assets

37,409,831

55,530,341

1,346,070,315

1,325,424,230

		 Restricted reserves

Total Assets

Deferred outflow - pension

14,413,312

18,197,360

Deferred outflow - OPEB

5,890,261

-

Loss on refunding of debt

4,209,928

4,987,568

24,513,501

23,184,928

$ 1,370,583,816

$ 1,348,609,158

Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources
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Current Liabilities
		 Accounts payable
		 Sewer collections (contra)

See accompanying notes to financial statements

$

13,259,220

$

13,895,020

2,089,684

1,589,587

		 Customer deposits and advances

7,321,683

6,873,406

		 Tax collections payable

498,010

471,201

		 Accrued interest payable

1,361,064

1,470,818

		 Contracts payable, retainage percentage

2,852,714

2,067,169

		 Accrued payroll

496,995

416,979

1,428,364

1,810,856

1,612,744

1,756,285

		 Bonds and notes payable, current portion

18,780,632

19,528,847

			 Total Current Liabilities

49,701,110

49,880,168

302,900

461,514

		 Net pension liability

77,085,962

72,516,743

		 Net OPEB liability

22,471,844

-

13,804,499

16,205,555

		 Bonds and notes payable, less current portion

250,685,699

269,466,331

			 Total Long-Term Liabilities

364,350,904

358,650,143

414,052,014

408,530,311

Deferred inflow - pension

2,453,269

3,218,422

Deferred inflow - OPEB

4,265,429

-

6,718,698

3,218,422

420,770,712

411,748,733

926,336,366

845,419,690

		 Accrued vacation and sick leave
		 Insurance reserve

Long-Term Liabilities
		 Customer advances for construction

		 Unamortized debt premium and discount

Total Liabilities
Deferred Inflow of Resources

			 Total Deferred Inflow Resources
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflow of Resources

Deferred Outflow of Resources

		 Total Deferred Outflow of Resources

2017

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

(9,419,398)

59,228,817

Restricted, expendable – debt service

32,896,137

32,211,918

949,813,104

936,860,425

$ 1,370,583,816

$ 1,348,609,158

		

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and Net Position
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
2018

2017

2018

Revenues

2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating revenues

$ 191,958,588

$ 184,565,198

Operating Expenses
Operating and maintenance expenses

78,292,253

74,029,418

GASB 68 pension actuarial adjustment

7,588,114

7,889,158

GASB 75 OPEB actuarial adjustment

943,202

-

39,016,455

37,151,375

18,191,194

17,429,731

2,124,512

1,863,653

146,155,730

138,363,335

Depreciation and amortization
Water and fire service provided in lieu of taxes
Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets  	
			 Total Operating Expenses

Cash received from customers

45,802,858

46,201,863

(47,622,617)

(38,673,129)

Cash paid to employees for services or benefits

(30,988,537)

(29,063,007)

96,348,352

99,705,250

(19,651,325)

(19,843,506 )

(102,156,914)

(83,101,692 )

(582,963)

(566,059 )

		 Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Dividends paid to stockholder
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities
Acquisition and construction of utility plant
Contributions in aid of construction
Customer advances for construction

Non-Operating Income (Expense)

Preliminary engineering charges

Interest income

$ 167,441,386

Cash paid to suppliers and others

Acquisition of non-utility property
Net Operating Revenue

$ 174,959,506

11,573,292

11,557,003

(158,614)

(11,111)

78,934

(3,248)

1,798,406

1,002,116

Principal paid

(19,528,847)

(19,112,096)

Building America Bond refund

1,236,130

1,354,882

Interest paid

(8,037,658)

(9,728,038)

Interest expense

(7,785,358)

(9,653,009)

(118,812,770)

(100,965,241)

(4,750,822 )

(7,296,011)
Investment - purchases

(33,727,976)

(64,994,143)

Investment - maturities

80,493,700

38,426,193

			 Net Non-Operating Expense

		 Net Cash Used In Capital and Related Financing Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Net Income Before Distributions and Contributions

41,052,036

38,905,852

Restricted cash reserves

(491,414)

42,420,561

10,407,789

Restricted funds

(192,805)

258,179

(8,617,036 )

Interest received  	

1,750,538

686,031

47,832,043

16,796,821

Net Change in Cash

5,716,300

(4,306,676)

Cash, beginning of year

9,380,355

13,687,031

$ 15,096,655

$ 9,380,355

Dividends paid and payable

(18,997,197)

(19,024,825)

Contributions in aid of construction

10,801,650

			 Total Distributions and Contributions

(8,195,547)

		 Net Cash Provided By Investing Activities
Change in Net Position
Net Position, beginning of year

$

32,856,489

$ 936,860,425

$

30,288,816

$ 906,571,609

Restatement for GASB 75 implementation

(19,903,810)

Net Position, beginning of year, as restated

916,956,615

906,571,609

Change in Net Position

32,856,489

30,288,816

$ 949,813,104

$ 936,860,425

Net Position, end of year
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-

See accompanying notes to financial statements

Cash, end of year
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017
2018

NOTE 1 – Significant Accounting Policies

2017

Description of the Business: Louisville Water Company (the “Company” or “Louisville Water”) is a provider of retail water and

Reconciliation of Net Operating Revenue
to Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
Net operating revenue

related services to residential, commercial, industrial and fire service customers in Jefferson County and parts of Oldham
$ 45,802,858

$ 46,201,863

Adjustments to reconcile net operating
revenue to cash provided by operating activities
39,646,630

37,622,250

		 Amortization

767,044

678,766

		 Loss from sale and salvage of retired assets

2,124,512

1,863,653

Changes in current assets and liabilities
243,738

(1,187,725 )

		 Materials and supplies

218,552

44,216

		 Other current assets

(331,935)

351,073

		 Other deferred charges

(547,729)

838,569

(635,800)

3,073,539

		 Accounts payable, sewer collections

500,097

148,414

		 Customer deposits

448,277

1,345,230

		 Tax collections payable

26,809

(199,355 )

(382,492)

99,716

80,016

45,566

		 Net pension liability

4,569,219

13,719,124

		 Net OPEB liability

(2,434,324)

		 Deferred outflow - pension

3,784,048		

		 Accrued payroll

		 Deferred outflow - OPEB
		 Deferred inflow - pension
		 Deferred inflow - OPEB
		 Insurance
Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities

(6,693,706)

416,115		

863,740

(765,153)

-

2,961,411
(143,541)
$ 96,348,352

-

those communities.

The Company is a component unit of Louisville/Jefferson County Metro Government (“Louisville Metro”). The Company is a

fees for those services. It is shown as a discretely presented component unit because Louisville Metro is the sole shareholder of the Company’s stock, receives a quarterly dividend, and the Mayor appoints the Company’s Board of Directors. Water

and fire services valued at $18.2 million were provided to Louisville Metro in lieu of taxes during the year ended December
31, 2018. The Company remitted $19,338,075 in dividends to Louisville Metro during its fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

In 2014, the Company further demonstrated its commitment to the community by founding a nonprofit organization, the
Louisville Water Foundation (the “Foundation”). The Foundation’s mission is to improve the health and wellbeing of the

communities it serves and around the world by providing water assistance and water education. The creation of a separate, nonprofit entity allows additional financial and/or in-kind support to flow into the Foundation from a broad base of

public and private sources. The related financial activity of the Foundation is not deemed to be a component unit of the
Company.

Basis of Presentation: The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting prin-

ciples generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for governmental organizations reporting as a business-type activity and enterprise fund accounting, a type of proprietary fund. Business-type activities are those activities
that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods and services. An enterprise fund is

accounted for under the economic resource measurement focus and uses the accrual basis of accounting which reports
all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, revenues, expenses, gains and losses. The

890,317

financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting which allows for revenues to be recognized

$ 99,705,250

Method of Accounting: The Company adopts common industry accounting policies for water utilities. Although the Compa-

when earned and expenses to be recorded when an obligation has been incurred.

ny is not subject to regulation, the accounts are maintained in accordance with the uniform system of accounts prescribed

by the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners, except with respect to the treatment of gains and losses

Supplemental Information
Non-cash capital and related financing activities
Accrued utility plant acquisitions

through philanthropic and charitable outreach activities, directly contributing to improving the health and well-being of

legally separate entity that provides water utility services to the residents of the Louisville metropolitan area and charges

		 Accounts receivable

		 Accrued vacation and sick leave

Bullitt, Nelson, Shelby and Spencer Counties in Kentucky and has contracts to operate water treatment facilities in southern Indiana and Fort Knox, Kentucky. Throughout its 160-year history, the Company has engaged the communities it serves

		 Depreciation

		 Accounts payable

and Bullitt Counties in Kentucky. The Company also provides wholesale water service to seven utility customers located in

from the retirement or disposition of utility plant. The Company recognizes gain or loss, including cost of removal, upon
$ 6,049,945

$ 6,558,790

the retirement or disposition of utility plant rather than the transfer of cost to accumulated depreciation, as provided by
the National Association of Regulatory Utility Commissioners. Due to the election as a regulated operation under GASB
62, to meet industry accounting standards and follow transactional intent, the Company uses, as applicable, Accounting
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 980, Regulated Accounting.
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Estimates in the Financial Statements: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America requires, at times, management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of

Recent Accounting Pronouncements: The GASB has issued the following statements not yet required to be adopted by the
Company that the company believes may be relevant to their operations and note disclosures.

• GASB Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations, effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

• GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

Prior-Year Comparative Information: The financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative infor-

• GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

mation in total but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in conformity with generally accepted accounting

• GASB Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and Direct Placements,

principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements for the

effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018.

year ended December 31, 2017, from which summarized information was derived.

• GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a Construction Period, effective for

Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all unrestricted highly

periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

liquid investments with a remaining maturity of twelve months or less to be short-term investments. Significant noncash

• GASB Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61, effective

transactions excluded from the statement of cash flows included accrued utility plant acquisitions of $6,049,945 for the
year ended December 31, 2018.

Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements: During fiscal year 2018, the Company adopted the following GASB statements:
• GASB Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, issued March 2017. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods

beginning after June 15, 2017. The objective of the Statement is to address issues identified during implementation of certain GASB standards and will address a variety of topics including issues related to blended component
units, goodwill, fair value measurement, and applications, and postemployment benefits.

• GASB Statement No. 86, Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues, issued May 2017. The provisions of this Statement

are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2017. The objective of the Statement is to improve consistency in

accounting and financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance for transactions in
which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only existing resources – resources other than the proceeds
of refunding debt – are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt.

Adoption of these statements did not have a significant impact on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.
• GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, is-

sued on June 2015 aims to improve financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other postemployment benefits or OPEB). It also improves information provided by state
and local government employers regarding financial support for OPEB that is provided by other entities.

Adoption of this statement had a material impact on the Company’s financial position. As a result, the Company restated
the January 1, 2018 net position in the amount of ($19,903,810) as outlined below:

Net position, January 1, 2018
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$ 936,860,425

The Company’s management has not yet determined the effect, if any, these statements will have on the Company’s fi-

nancial statements. GASB Statements 84 and 87 will likely have a financial impact on a retroactive basis and current year
operations when implemented.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts: Accounts receivable are stated at the estimated amount man-

agement expects to collect from outstanding customer accounts. The allowance for doubtful accounts is established based
on historical collection experience and a review of the current status of existing water, contract and miscellaneous receivables. See Note 2 for more information.

Inventory: Materials and supplies inventories are stated at the average cost.
Investments: Investments are reported at fair value with gains and losses included in the Statements of Revenues, Expens-

es and Changes in Net Position. Gains or losses on dispositions are determined using the specific identification method.
Treasury securities with maturity of one year or less at the time of purchases are recorded at amortized cost in accordance
with GASB 72.

Capitalized Interest: The Company follows the practice of capitalizing interest during construction on capital projects that
are debt financed. Interest in the amount of $2,500,152 was capitalized during 2018.

Utility Plant: Utility plant is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect costs. Direct purchases with a unit cost of $2,500 or more and a useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. The Company applies the

straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable property. The estimated useful lives of some significant asset categories are as follows:

BEGINNING 		
BALANCE
AS RESTATED

Statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position

for periods beginning after December 15, 2018.

$ 916,956,615		

Buildings
Pipelines
Fire hydrants
Services
Meters
Equipment
Trucks and autos

GASB 75
ADJUSTMENT

$ (19,903,810 )
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50 to 100 years
65 to 100 years
50 years
40 years
15 years
5 to 10 years
5 years

Depreciation expense for 2018 was $39,746,548 of which $1,397,219 was allocated to other operating expenses.
Non-utility Property: Non-utility property is stated at cost of acquisition or construction, including certain indirect costs.
Direct purchases with a unit cost of $2,500 or more and a useful life of greater than one year are capitalized. The Company

applies the straight-line method of depreciation to the estimated useful lives of the various classes of depreciable property.
Depreciation expense of non-utility plant was $667,126 for 2018.

Prepaid Regulatory Assets: The Company capitalizes and depreciates abandoned plant assets generally over five to eight

years. An amount of $1,101,540 was added to the account during 2018. The prepaid regulatory assets, stated net of depreciation were $2,501,828 as of December 31, 2018.

Customer Deposits: The Company has implemented a security deposit policy for customers applying for residential, commercial or industrial water service who: (i) have not had an account with the Company for three consecutive years; or (ii)
have had a previous account in bad debt or bankruptcy status; or (iii) have had a service disconnected due to nonpayment

Debt and Bond Related Costs: Debt related policies include the following:
• Bonds payable are recorded at the principal amount outstanding, net of any applicable premium or discount.
• Original issue discounts and premiums on bonds are amortized as a component of interest expense using the effective interest method over the lives of the bonds to which they relate.

• Refunding bonds outstanding, which have been refunded and economically defeased, are not included in long-term
debt. The related assets are not included in investments. The loss on refunding, which is the difference between the

reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt, is deferred outflow of resources and amortized as a
component of interest expense over the average remaining life of the old debt.

• Bond issue costs are capitalized and amortized over the life of the respective bond issue using the effective interest method,
pursuant to the election of regulatory operation under GASB 62, as they are deemed recoverable through future rates.

within the last three years of service. The Company refunds the security deposit when: (i) a customer closes the account;

Contributed Capital and Construction Grants: Construction and acquisition of water lines and other facilities and plants

security deposit for temporary meters for construction. Total security deposits at December 31, 2018 were $2,950,650. The

opers. Governmental grants in aid of construction represent the portion of construction cost incurred where paperwork

are refundable to the extent the deposit is in excess of the construction cost. Total construction deposits were $4,371,033 at

the documentation is submitted. The revenues from contributions are part of the change in net position.

or (ii) the customer has paid their bill in a timely manner for three consecutive years. Additionally, the Company charges a

are financed, in part, from governmental grants and contributions in aid of construction from property owners and devel-

Company also requires customers to make a deposit for the cost of construction of pipelines and special services. Deposits

has been submitted to the entity. These amounts are recorded as a receivable and revenues from contributions at the time

December 31, 2018. All customer and security deposits are included as customer deposits and advances in current liabilities

Restricted and Unrestricted Funds: Restricted funds are externally reserved for the purpose of bond debt service, funding of

on the statement of net position.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave: Employees’ vested and accumulated vacation and sick leave is recorded as a liability on the
statement of net position. Accrued vacation and sick leave balances were $1,428,364 as of December 31, 2018.

Customer Advances for Construction: The customer advances for construction accounts reflect the anticipated long-term

liability for refunding construction costs based on future new service installations within certain time limits up to 20
years. Once the refund period has expired, any balance is recorded as a contribution in aid of construction in the Company’s

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. Total customer advances for construction at December 31,
2018 were $302,900.

Pensions and Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”): For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred out-

flows and inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of

the County Employees Retirement system (CERS) and additions to and deductions from CERS’ fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

capital expenditures and debt service reserves. Unrestricted funds are used to pay operating expenses. When an expense
or outlay is incurred for which both restricted and unrestricted funds are available, it is the Company’s practice to use

revenue from operations to finance construction, then reimburse from restricted funds as needed. Restricted funds can be

used to pay operating expenses in the case of an emergency caused by some extraordinary occurrence, so characterized in

a Certificate of an Authorized Officer filed with the Trustee, and an insufficiency of moneys to the credit of the Operation
Fund to meet such emergency.

Net Position: The Company classifies resources for accounting and reporting purposes into the following net position

categories:

• Net Investment in Capital Assets:

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and outstanding principal balances of debt and related liabilities
attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

• Restricted: Restricted net position includes two categories:

Nonexpendable - Net position subject to externally imposed stipulations that they be maintained permanently by
the Company.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources: Deferred outflows represent the consumption of resources that are applicable

to a future reporting period, but do not require any further exchange of goods or services. Deferred outflows of resources

Expendable - Net position whose use by the Company is subject to externally imposed stipulations that can be ful-

in the Company’s financial statements consist of the unamortized deferred loss on refunding of debt and CERS pension

and OPEB related unamortized balances. Deferred inflows of resources consist of the CERS pension related unamortized
balances.

filled by actions of the Company pursuant to those stipulations or that expire by the passage of time.
• Unrestricted:

Net position whose use by the Company is not subject to externally imposed stipulations. Unrestricted net position
may be designated for specific purposes by action of management or the Board of Water Works or may otherwise be
limited by contractual agreements with outside parties.
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Operating / Non-Operating Revenues and Expenses: Operating Revenues are those revenues that are generated directly

from the primary activities of the Company. These revenues include water service and commodity charges, late and other

water-related fees, contract operations and service line warranty fees, and compensation for service provided to others.
Operating expenses are expenses incurred through the activities of operating and maintaining the Company, including
depreciation, water provided in lieu of taxes, and loss on disposition of assets. Non-operating revenues and expenses are
comprised of investment and financing earnings and cost.

Revenue: Operating revenue is recognized in the period in which billings are rendered to customers. The Company does not
accrue revenue for water delivered but not billed.

Taxes: The Company, by virtue of its ownership by Louisville Metro, is exempt from taxation by federal, state and local tax-

ing authorities, however, the Company is liable for certain other taxes and provides water and fire services in lieu of taxes
to Louisville Metro. Tax expense, which includes water and fire service provided in lieu of taxes, for 2018 was $18,191,194.

Union Employees: The Company has employees who are covered by a collective bargaining agreement. At December 31,
2018, approximately 43% of the Company’s full-time employees were covered by the collective bargaining agreement. This
7-year agreement expires on March 1, 2023.

income earned. These funds are available to fund capital expenditures. The Depreciation Fund is collateralized by pledged
assets with the Federal Reserve for those funds that exceed the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit.

Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund: The Resolution provides for the funding of the Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund to support infrastructure replacement and rehabilitation projects. Funding was $875,000 for 2018. This fund

is collateralized by pledged assets with the Federal Reserve for those funds that exceed the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit.
Revenue: The Resolution requires all revenues received by the Company, and not required to be deposited elsewhere or oth-

erwise reserved for Special Investments, will be collected by the Company and deposited with a Depository or Depositories
to the credit of the Revenue Fund.

Operation Fund: Per the Resolution, each month the Company shall, after making required payments to the Bond Service
Account, the Bond Reserve Account, and the Depreciation Fund, withdraw from the Revenue Fund and deposit with a
Depository in the name of the Company to the credit of the Operation Fund the balance remaining in the Revenue Fund.

Rebate Fund: The Board and the Company have covenanted to rebate excess earnings to the United States in accordance

with law. The Rebate Fund is established for this purpose and amounts credited to the Rebate Fund shall be free from the

lien of the Resolution. Payment of any amount due shall be made by the Board of Water Works and the Company within
15 days following each five-year computation period for the calculation of excess rebateable arbitrage under the Internal

NOTE 2 – Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable as of December 31, 2018 include:

Revenue Code. There were no deposits required to be made to this fund during 2018.

Water 		
Other 		
			
Allowance for doubtful accounts		

$ 10,491,153
2,999,647
13,490,800
(957,584 )

			

$ 12,533,216

NOTE 3 – 2009 Master Bond Resolution Funds

The Company maintains a 2009 Master Bond Resolution (“Resolution”) that documents the legal requirements for the

The Company has Reserve and Bond Service accounts within cash and investments as of December 31, 2018 as follows:
Restricted, Expendable Bond Service Accounts:
		 Series 2009A
		 Series 2009B
		 Series 2014
		 Series 2015
			 Total restricted, expendable bond service accounts

outstanding bonds payable for the 2009, 2014 and 2015 bond series. The following accounts and funds are established by

Company is required to deposit monthly, into the Trustee’s Bond Service Accounts, one-sixth of the amount of the next
succeeding interest payment on the Series 2015, 2014A, 2009A and 2009B Bonds outstanding and one-twelfth of the next

maturing principal of those related bonds. The Bond Service Accounts are invested in a debt service fund agreement and
government obligation mutual funds, each stated at fair value.

Bond Reserve Account: The Resolution requires that the Bond Reserve Account be established at one-half of the highest

future annual maximum aggregate debt service. The fund is to be used to pay maturing bonds and interest in the event

funds in the Bond Service Account are not sufficient. Otherwise, funds may not be withdrawn until the bond issue is paid in
full. However, the income earned on investments may be transferred to the Bond Service Account. The reserve is invested in

Bond Related Reserves
		 Bond reserve account
			 Total bond related reserves

$ 14,761,025
$ 14,761,025

Capital Related Reserves
		 Infrastructure Replacement Reserve Fund
			 Total capital related reserves

$ 15,218,569
$ 15,218,569

			 Total Restricted Reserves - Noncurrent assets
			 Total

$ 29,979,594
$ 32,896,137

a debt service fund agreement, repurchase agreements and government obligation mutual funds, each stated at fair value.
Depreciation Fund: The Resolution requires the Company to make monthly deposits of an amount equal to one-twelfth of
an amount not less than the annual depreciation charges into the Depreciation Fund. The balance also includes interest
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$

539,369
1,155,262
544,850
677,062
2,916,543

Restricted Reserves:

the Resolution:

Bond Service Account: Except to the extent that the interest and principal are to be paid from other available sources, the

$
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Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits: Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Company’s deposits

NOTE 4 – Cash and Investments

The Company has adopted the provisions of GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk Disclosures. This statement

adds certain additional disclosures about cash and investments, including common areas of investment risk.

The Company’s investment policy specifies that the primary objectives, in priority order, of investment activities are safety,

liquidity and yield. In addition, funds are to be invested in conformity with federal, state and other legal requirements,
including bond resolutions.

At December 31, 2018, in addition to the reserve funds and the bond service account balances with trustees, as reflected in
Note 3, the Company had $13,099,768 of cash deposits with financial institutions held in temporary investments collateralized by the financial institutions with pledged assets.

WEIGHTED
AVERAGE
MATURITY
IN YEARS

Reserve and Bond Service Accounts:

Money market mutual funds		

$

CREDIT
RATING

0.08

Aaa

U.S. Treasury securities		

4,154,653

0.37

Aaa/AA+

Repurchase agreement (GIC)		

8,223,978

8.98

Aaa/AA+

Total bond reserve and bond service		

17,677,568

4.29

Cash in bank – capital related reserves		

15,218,569

		 Total restricted reserves and restricted,
		 expendable bond service accounts		

32,896,137

Custodial Credit Risk – Investments: For an investment, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of
the counterparty, the Company will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
the possession of an outside party. The Company’s bond reserve and bond service investments are held in the name of the
Company by a trustee. All other investments currently held are invested in or collateralized by U.S Treasury securities.

Credit Risk: The Company’s Investment Guidelines (“the Guidelines”) allow it to invest only in certain authorized invest-

and Federal Agency securities, money market mutual funds, repurchase agreements, highly rated commercial paper and
corporate fixed income securities, FDIC insured bank deposits and other high quality, low risk investments. The Guidelines

also require diversification of the overall portfolio to eliminate the risk of loss from an overconcentration of assets in a
specific class of security, a specific maturity, or a specific issuer.

Interest Rate Risk: The Company does not have a formal policy limiting maturities of its investments. Investments are made

based on the prevailing market conditions and anticipated cash needs at the time of the transaction. The Company’s interest rate risk is mitigated by the relatively short maturity of the securities in which it invests.
NOTE 5 – Fair Value Measurements

The Company categorizes its fair value measurements using the fair value hierarchy established in GASB 72. The hierarchy

is based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value. Assets classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued
using prices quoted for identical assets in active markets. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are

valued using a matrix pricing approach. Matrix pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to

Short-term liquid investments:
U.S. Treasury securities		

18,904,200

0.68

Aaa/AA+

Repurchase agreement		

34,000,000

0.29

Aaa/AA+

Total		

52,904,200

0.43

		 Total short-term liquid investments		

Reserve for those funds that exceed the $250,000 FDIC insurance limit.

opted on November 10, 2009, as supplemented on March 15, 2016. These authorized investments consist of U.S. Government

5,298,937

Unamortized discount		

ny has mitigated this risk as all deposits with depository institutions are collateralized by pledged assets with the Federal

ments which include only “Investment Securities” as defined in the Amended and Restated Revenue Bond Resolution ad-

Information related to all cash and investments for December 31, 2018 is included below.
			
			
			
			

may not be returned to it. The Company does not have a formal deposit policy for custodial credit risk, however, the Compa-

the benchmark quoted prices. Assets classified in Level 3 are valued based on unobservable inputs.

The Company’s fair value measurements as of December 31, 2018 of investments held in operating, reserves and bond
funds are:

(23,907)
52,880,293
Investments by fair value level:

Cash:
Cash in bank		

13,099,768

Petty cash		

4,156

Checks outstanding and deposits in transit		

1,992,731

		 Cash and temporary investments		

15,096,655

			 Total cash and investments		

$ 100,873,085

Money market mutual funds
U. S. Treasury Securities
Repurchase agreement (GIC)
		 Total

QUOTED PRICES
IN ACTIVE
MARKETS FOR
IDENTICAL ASSETS
(LEVEL 1)

$ 5,298,937

$

SIGNIFICANT
UNOBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 3)

-

$

TOTAL

-

$ 5,298,937

4,154,653

-

-

4,154,653

-

42,223,978

-

42,223,978

$ 9,453,590

$ 42,223,978

-

$ 51,677,568

$

At December 31, 2018, a portion of U.S. Treasury securities had maturities at the time of purchase of less than twelve months.
These securities are recorded at amortized cost of $18,904,200.
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SIGNIFICANT
OTHER
OBSERVABLE
INPUTS
(LEVEL 2)
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NOTE 6 – Utility Plant, Net

NOTE 7 – Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a schedule of utility plant for the year ended December 31, 2018:

Capital assets, depreciable
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure
		 Total

Long-term liabilities at December 31, 2018, are summarized as follows:

BEGINNING 			
BALANCE
ADDITIONS
REDUCTIONS

$ 204,996,772

$ 4,554,449

99,521,387

$

(648,793)

$ 208,902,428

15,602,103

(2,717,266)

112,406,224

1,273,494,988

67,736,393

(6,361,593)

1,334,869,788

1,578,013,147

87,892,945

(9,727,652)

1,656,178,440

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings

(71,071,839)

(6,960,752)

380,388

(77,652,203)

Machinery and equipment

(54,247,873)

(6,868,013)

2,673,142

(58,442,744)

(403,873,935)

(29,481,563)

2,537,295

(430,818,203)

(529,193,647)

(43,310,328)

5,590,825

(566,913,150)

44,582,617

(4,136,827)

Infrastructure
		 Total
Capital assets, net

1,048,819,500

1,089,265,290

Capital assets not being
depreciated
Land

12,687,543

164,660

(770,681)

12,081,522

Construction in progress

90,987,337

105,915,637

(85,469,552)

111,433,422

103,674,880

106,080,297

(86,240,233)

123,514,944

$ 1,152,494,380

$ 150,662,914

$ (90,377,060)

$ 1,212,780,234

		 Total
			 Utility plant, net
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BEGINNING 			
BALANCE
ADDITIONS
REDUCTIONS

ENDING
BALANCE

Bonds payable

NONCURRENT
PORTION

$ (19,440,000 )

$268,135,000

$ 18,690,000

$ 249,445,000

1,420,178

-

(88,847 )

1,331,331

90,632

1,240,699

16,205,555

-

(2,401,056 )

13,804,499

-

13,804,499

Customer advances
for construction

461,514

12,612

(171,226 )

302,900

-

302,900

Net pension liability

72,516,743

8,703,734

(4,134,515 )

77,085,962

-

77,085,962

Net OPEB liability

-

26,074,280

(3,602,436 )

22,471,844

-

22,471,844

Total long-term
liabilities

$ 378,178,990

$ 34,790,626

$ (29,838,080 )

$ 383,131,536

$ 18,780,632

$ 364,350,904

Unamortized debt
premiums and
discounts
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$

CURRENT
PORTION

-

KIA note payable

$ 287,575,000

ENDING
BALANCE

Maturities of bonds and notes payable, as of December 31, 2018, are as follows:

NOTE 8 – Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds and notes payable as of December 31, 2018 consist of the following:
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2009A tax
exempt, fixed interest rates ranging from 2.25% to
5.0% with maturities from 2010 through 2025
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2009B taxable,
fixed interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 5.5% with
maturities from 2017 through 2029
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2014A tax exempt,
fixed interest rates ranging from 2.5% to 5.0% with
maturities from 2014 through 2031
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2015 tax exempt,
fixed interest rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.0% with
maturities from 2016 through 2035
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority, Drinking Water
State Revolving Fund Loan Program, fixed interest rate
of 2.0% and maturities from 2012 through 2031
Total bonds and notes payable
Less current portion
Bonds and notes payable, less
current portion

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31

2019
$ 33,670,000

66,790,000

55,860,000

$

PRINCIPAL

INTEREST

TOTAL

18,780,632

$ 10,896,938

$ 29,677,570

2020

19,537,454

9,994,936

29,532,390

2021

20,314,312

9,120,540

29,434,852

2022

20,161,208

8,199,856

28,361,064

2023

19,828,142

7,281,822

27,109,964

2024-2028

94,491,105

23,630,620

118,121,725

2029-2033

59,128,478

7,650,989

66,779,467

2034-2035

17,225,000

811,560

18,036,560

$ 269,466,331

$ 77,587,261

$ 347,053,592

NOTE 9 – Dividends

111,815,000

The Company is required by bond resolution to pay a dividend to Louisville Metro, its sole stockholder. The annual dividend,

calculated in accordance with the provisions of the 2009 Master Bond Resolution, is equal to fifty percent (50%) of the aver-

age of the current and prior two fiscal years’ net income before distributions and contributions with certain adjustments

1,331,331
$ 269,466,331
18,780,632
$ 250,685,699

All bonds are subject to optional redemption provisions.

and exclusions (adjusted net income). The dividend is paid quarterly each year based on estimated annual adjusted net

income.   The dividend is adjusted upon completion of the annual audit to reflect any difference between estimated and
actual net income, with such adjustment to be made in the quarterly dividend payments of the following year. The 2018
dividend computed under this provision was $18,997,197, resulting in an overpayment of $2,456,503 which will be subtracted from 2019 dividend payments.

NOTE 10 – Deferred Compensation Plans

The Company offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Sec-

tion 457. The plan permits participating employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. An employee may

The Water System Revenue Bond Resolution contains a rate covenant requiring that the schedule of rates and charges, and

defer up to 100% of adjusted gross compensation or $18,500, whichever is less, to the plan. The deferred compensation is

justments to water rates and charges are required, as necessary, so that annual Net Revenues as defined in the Resolution

not recorded by the Company. The Company contributes $0.25 for every $1.00 of an employee’s contribution up to $1,500

bonds. All revenues of the Company are pledged for the revenue bonds.

expense was approximately $100,070 for the year ended December 31, 2018.

the rules and regulations for water services will not be revised so as to result in a decrease of revenues. Also, future ad-

not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseen emergency. Plan assets and liabilities are

will not be less than 130% of the maximum Aggregate Bond Service for each Bond Fiscal Year in respect of all outstanding

($375 maximum Company contribution) to the plan. The amount contributed to the plan by the Company and charged to
The Company also offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code
Section 401(k). An eligible employee may defer up to 100% of adjusted gross compensation or $18,500, whichever is less, to
the plan. As of January 1, 2015, the Company no longer contributes to this plan.
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five (5) fiscal years of salary. If the number of months of service credit during the five (5) year period is less than

NOTE 11 – Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postemployment Benefits Plan–

forty-eight (48), one (1) or more additional fiscal years shall be used. If a member has less than 48 months of

Cost Sharing - CERS

service, the monthly benefit is the actuarial equivalent of two times the member’s contributions with interest.

General Information About the Pension Plan: All full-time and eligible part-time employees of the Company participate in

County Employee Retirement System (CERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered
by the Kentucky Retirement System (KRS), an agency of the Commonwealth. Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.520, the Board of Trustees (the Board) of KRS administers CERS, Kentucky Employee Retirement System, and

State Police Retirement System. Although the assets of the systems are invested as a whole, each system’s assets are used
only for the payment of benefits to members of that plan, and a pro rata share of administrative costs.

Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008 but before 1/1/2014:

Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with 60 months of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or age 57 if age plus service equals
at least 87.

Benefit:

The plan provides for retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members. Retirement benefits may also be extended

10 years or less
10+ - 20 years
20+ - 26 years
26+ - 30 years

61.701, the Board of KRS also administers the Kentucky Retirement Systems Insurance Fund. The statutes provide for a single
insurance fund to provide group hospital and medical benefits to retirees drawing a benefit from the three pension funds
administered by KRS. The assets of the insurance fund are invested as a whole. KRS and the Commonwealth have statutory

KRS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary informa-

tion for CERS. The report may be obtained by writing to Kentucky Retirement System, Perimeter Park West, 1260 Louisville
Road, Frankfort, Kentucky 40601, or it may be found at the KRS website at www.kyret.ky.gov.

Basis of Accounting: For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflow
of resources related to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of CERS and additions to/
deductions from CERS’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CERS. For

Members whose participation began on or after 1/1/2014:

Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with 60 months of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or age 57 if age plus service
equals at least 87.
Benefit:

geometric average net investment return for the previous five years exceeds 4%, then the hypothetical account

will be credited with an additional amount of interest equal to 75% of the amount of the return which exceeds

Members whose participation began before 8/1/2004:

4%. All interest credits will be applied to the hypothetical account balance on June 30 based on the account

Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with at least one month of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or at any age with 27

balance as of June 30 of the previous year. Upon retirement the hypothetical account which includes member

or more years of service credit.

contributions, employer contributions and interest credits can be withdrawn from the System as a lump sum or
annuitized into a single life annuity option.

If a member has at least 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.20% times final average compensation

ber has less than 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is the actuarial equivalent of two times the member’s contributions with interest.

Members whose participation began on or after 8/1/2004, but before 9/1/2008:

OPEB Benefits Provided: The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of CERS-Non-Hazardous. It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all benefit provisions:
Insurance Tier 1: Participation began before 7/1/2003

Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance
Benefit:

Age and Service Requirement: Age 65 with at least one month of Nonhazardous duty service credit, or at any age with 27
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The percentage of member premiums paid by the retirement system are dependent on the number of years

of service. Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in service, non-duty death in service and
surviving spouse of a retiree.

or more years of service credit.
Benefit:

itable compensation, and the member’s employer contributes 4.00% of creditable compensation, which is a
terest annually on both the member’s and employer’s contribution at a minimum rate of 4%. If the System’s

ardous. It is not intended to be, nor should it be interpreted as, a complete statement of all benefit provisions:

the five (5) year period is less than forty-eight (48), one (1) or more additional fiscal years shall be used. If a mem-

Each year that a member is an active contributing member to the System, the member contributes 5% of credportion of the total employer contribution, into a hypothetical account. The hypothetical account will earn in-

Pension Benefits Provided: The information below summarizes the major retirement benefit provisions of CERS-Non-Haz-

taking the average of the highest five (5) fiscal years of salary. If the number of months of service credit during

1.10%
1.30%
1.50%
1.75%

fiscal year used to determine final compensation must contain twelve (12) months of service credit.

accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

times years of service depending on participation and retirement dates. Final compensation is calculated by

BENEFIT FACTOR000000

Final compensation is calculated by taking the average of the last (not highest) five (5) complete fiscal years of salary. Each

this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in

Benefit:

year of service greater than 30 years, multiplied by final average compensation, multiplied by years of service.
00000SERVICE CREDIT

to beneficiaries of plan members under certain circumstances. Under the provisions of Kentucky Revised Statute Section

authority to determine Plan benefits and employer contributions.

The monthly benefit is the following benefit factor based on service credit at retirement plus 2.00% for each

If a member has at least 48 months of service, the monthly benefit is 2.00% multiplied by final average compensation, multiplied by years of service. Final compensation is calculated by taking the average of the highest
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Insurance Tier 2: Participation began on or after 7/1/2003, but before 9/1/2008

Benefit Eligibility: Recipient of a retirement allowance with at least 120 months of service at retirement
Benefit:

The system provides a monthly contribution subsidy of $10 for each year of earned service. The monthly contri-

Pension Information

Total Pension Liability: The total pension liability (“TPL”) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

bution is increased by 1.5% each July 1. Benefits also include duty disability retirements, duty death in service and
non-duty death in service.

Tier 3 insurance benefits are identical to Tier 2, except Tier 3 members are required to have at least 180 months
of service in order to be eligible.

Contributions: The Company was required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate determined by Statute. Per Kentucky Revised Statute Section 78.545(33) normal contribution and past service contribution rates shall be determined by
the KRS Board on the basis of an annual valuation last preceding July 1 of a new biennium. The KRS Board may amend contribution rates as of the first day of July of the second year of a biennium, if it is determined on the basis of a subsequent

actuarial valuation that amended contribution rates are necessary to satisfy requirements determined in accordance with
actuarial bases adopted by the KRS Board.

For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2018, participating employers contributed 21.48% (16.22% allocated to pension and
5.26% allocated to OPEB) as set by KRS, of each Nonhazardous employee’s creditable compensation. This percentage is inclusive of both pension and insurance payments for employers. Administrative costs of KRS are financed through employer
contributions and investment earnings.

The Company has met 100% of the contribution funding requirement for the year ended December 31, 2018. Total current

the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the
period after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future improvement in
mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation is conducted. The actuarial

assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period
July 1, 2008 – June 30, 2013.

Discount rate assumptions:
(a) Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%.
(b) Projected Cash Flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the local employ-

ers and plan members would contribute the statutorily determined contribution rate of projected compensation
over the remaining 25-year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. The actuarial deter-

mined contribution rate is adjusted to reflect the phase in of anticipated gains on actuarial value of assets over
the first four years of the projection period.

(c) Long-Term Rate of Return: The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experience studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering

2.5%; and per statute shallnot be less than 2.0%. Member entitled to a full refund of contributions with interest.

fiscal years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30, 2014. However, the Board of KRS has the authority to review the assumptions on a more frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next sched-

Members whose participation began on or after 9/1/2008:

uled experience study. The long-term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in

Nonhazardous contributions equal to 6% of all creditable compensation, with 5% being credited to the member’s ac-

which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The ranges

count and 1% deposited to the KRS 401(h) Account. Interest paid on the members’ accounts will be set at 2.5%. Member
the insurance fund is non-refundable.

Members whose participation on or after 1/1/2014:

Nonhazardous contribution equal to 6% of all creditable compensation, with 5% being credited to the member’s account

and 1% deposited to the KRS 401(h) Account. Members are entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest on the mem-

ber’s portion of the hypothetical account, however, the 1% contributed to the insurance fund is non-refundable.
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including inflation

the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females). For disabled members,

amount of $268,196.

is entitled to a full refund of contributions and interest in their individual account, however, the 1% contributed to

6.25 percent, net of pension plan investment expense,

tiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is

the year ended December 31, 2018. The OPEB contributions amount does not include the implicit subsidy reported in the

Nonhazardous contributions equal 5% of all creditable compensation. Interest paid on the members’accounts is currently

Investment rate of return

3.05 percent, average, including inflation

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (mul-

year contributions recognized by the Plan were $3,445,231 ($2,601,567 related to pension and $843,665 related to OPEB) for

Members whose participation began before 9/1/2008:

2.30 percent

Salary increases

Insurance Tier 3: Participation began on or after 9/1/2008

Benefit:

Price Inflation

are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage.
(d) Municipal Bond Rate: The discount rate determination does not use a municipal bond rate.

(e) Periods of Projected Benefit Payments: The long-term assumed rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

(f) Assumed Asset Allocation: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:
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TARGET
ASSET CLASS
ALLOCATION

LONG-TERM
EXPECTED REAL
RATE OF RETURN

US Large Cap 		

5.00%

US Mid Cap		

6.00%

4.50%

US Small Cap		

6.50%

5.50%

International Developed 		

12.50%

6.50%

Emerging Market Debt 		

5.00%

7.25%

Global Bonds 		

4.00%

3.00%

Global IG Credit 		

2.00%

3.75%

High Yield 		

7.00%

5.50%

Emerging Market Debt		

5.00%

6.00%

Illiquid Private		

10.00%

8.50%

Private Equity 		

10.00%

6.50%

		

5.00%

9.00%

Absolute Return 		

10.00%

5.00%

Real Return		

10.00%

7.00%

Cash 		

2.00%

1.50%

Real Estate

Total 		

100.00%

4.50%

5.13%

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KRS Board of Trustees at 6.25% based
on a blending of the factors described above.

(g) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in
the discount rate. The following presents the Company’s allocated portion of the net pension liability (“NPL”) of

the System, calculated using the discount rate of 6.25 percent, as well as what the Company’s allocated portion of

the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (5.25
percent) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.25 percent) than the current rate:
			
		
1% DECREASE
		
(5.25%)

Net position liability Nonhazardous		

$ 97,043,242

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total pension have not changed.

Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective net pension
liability and the employer’s reporting date.

Pension Expense: The Company was allocated pension expense of $12,481,047 related to the CERS for the year ending
June 30, 2018.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods each year, the de-

ferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce pension expense they are labeled
as deferred inflows. If they will increase pension expense they are labeled deferred outflows. The amortization of these

amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the

active and inactive System members at the beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a
fixed five-year period. Deferred inflows and outflows as of the Measurement Date include:

Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions
Differences between expected and actual investment
earnings on plan investments
				
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
		 Total

$ 2,514,328
7,533,541

DEFERRED
INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES

$ 1,128,376
-

1,763,877

400,589

11,811,746
2,601,567

924,304
2,453,269
-

$ 14,413,313

$ 2,453,269

Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $2,601,567
will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in the year ending December 31, 2019. The remainder of the deferred
outflows and deferred inflows of resources are amortized over the remaining service lives of participants with remaining amor-

CURRENT
DISCOUNT RATE
(6.25%)

$ 77,085,962

1% INCREASE
(7.25%)

tization as follows:

2019
2020
2021
2022
		 Total

$ 60,365,256

Employer’s Portion of the Collective Net Pension Liability: The Company’s proportionate share of the net pension liability,
as indicated in the prior table, is $77,085,962, or approximately 1.27%. The net pension liability was distributed based on
2018 actual employer contributions to the plan.

Measurement Date: June 30, 2018 is the actuarial valuation date and measurement date upon which the total pension

$ 6,743,277
3,749,741
(720,806)
(413,735)
$ 9,358,477

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the pension plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued pension plan financial reports.

liability is based.
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OPEB Information

determined contributions, and it is the actuary’s understanding that any cost associated with the implicit sub-

sidy will not be paid out of the system’s trust. Therefore, the municipal bond rate was applied to future expected

Total OPEB Liability: The total other postemployment benefits plan (“OPEB”) was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Price inflation

2.30%

Salary increases

3.05%, average

Payroll growth rate
Investment rate of return

2.00%
6.25%

benefit payments associated with the implicit subsidy.

(f) Assumed Asset Allocations: The target asset allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for
each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

			
		
TARGET
ASSET CLASS
ALLOCATION

LONG-TERM
EXPECTED REAL
RATE OF RETURN

US Large Cap 		

5.00%

US Mid Cap		

6.00%

4.50%

US Small Cap		

6.50%

5.50%

International Developed 		

12.50%

6.50%

The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (mul-

Emerging Market Debt 		

5.00%

7.25%

Global Bonds 		

4.00%

3.00%

the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 1 year for females). For disabled members,

Global IG Credit 		

2.00%

3.75%

High Yield 		

7.00%

5.50%

Emerging Market Debt		

5.00%

6.00%

Illiquid Private		

10.00%

8.50%

Private Equity 		

10.00%

6.50%

		

5.00%

9.00%

Absolute Return 		

10.00%

5.00%

Real Return		

10.00%

7.00%

Cash 		

2.00%

1.50%

Total 		

100.00%

6.09%

Healthcare trend rates
Pre-65

Post-65

Initial trend starting at 7.25% at January 1, 2019 and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 13 years.
Initial trend starting at 5.10% at January 1, 2019 and gradually decreasing to an ultimate trend rate of 4.05% over a period of 11 years.

tiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females). For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is

the RP-2000 Combined Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the
period after disability retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future improvement in

mortality rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation is conducted. The actuarial

assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period
July 1, 2008 – June 30, 2013.

Discount rate assumptions:
(a) Discount Rate: The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 5.85%.
(b) Projected Cash Flows: The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the local employ-

Real Estate

4.50%

ers and plan members would contribute the actuarially determined contribution rate of projected compensation
over the remaining 26-year amortization period of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

(c) Long-Term Rate of Return: The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the regular experi-

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was established by the KRS Board of Trustees at

ence studies prepared every five years for the System. The most recent analysis, performed for the period covering
fiscal years 2008 through 2013 is outlined in a report dated April 30, 2014. However, the Board of KRS has the authority to review the assumptions on a more frequent basis and adopt new assumptions prior to the next sched-

uled experience study. The long-term expected rate of return was determined by using a building-block method in

6.25% based on a blending of the factors described above.

(g) Sensitivity Analysis: This paragraph requires disclosure of the sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the
discount rate and changes in the healthcare cost trend rate.

which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rate of returns are developed for each asset class. The ranges

The following presents the Company’s allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the System, calculated using

are combined by weighting the expected future real rate of return by the target asset allocation percentage.

the discount rate of 5.85%, as well as what the Company’s allocated portion of the System’s net OPEB liability

(d) Municipal Bond Rate: The discount rate determination used a municipal bond rate of 3.56% as reported in Fidelity
Index’s “20 – Year Municipal GO AA Index” as of June 30, 2018.

(e) Period of Projected Benefit Payments: Current assets, future contributions, and investment earnings are projected

to be sufficient to pay the projected benefit payments from the retirement system. However, the cost associated

with the implicit employer subsidy is not currently being included in the calculation of the system’s actuarial
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would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (4.85 %) or 1-percentage-point
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higher (6.85 %) than the current rate for non-hazardous:

			
1% DECREASE
		
(4.85%)

Net OPEB liability 		

$ 29,187,322

CURRENT
DISCOUNT RATE
(5.85%)

$ 22,471,844

1% INCREASE
(6.85%)

$ 16,751,483

The following presents the Company’s allocated portion of the net OPEB liability of the System, calculated using
the healthcare cost trend rate, as well as what the Company’s allocated portion of the System’s net OPEB liability
would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate for non-hazardous:

		
		

Net OPEB liability 		

CURRENT HEALTHCARE
1% DECREASE

$ 16,730,510

COST TREND RATE

$ 22,471,844

1% INCREASE

$ 29,239,223

Employer’s Portion of the Collective OPEB Liability: The Company’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, as indi-

cated in the prior table, is $22,471,844, or approximately 1.27%. The net OPEB liability was distributed based on 2018 actual
employer contributions to the plan.

Measurement Date: June 30, 2018 is the actuarial valuation date and measurement date upon which the total pension
liability is based.

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the total OPEB liability have not changed.

Changes Since Measurement Date: There were no changes between the measurement date of the collective net OPEB
liability and the employer’s reporting date.

OPEB Expense: The Company was allocated OPEB expense of $2,910,739 related to the CERS for the year ending

June 30, 2018.

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows: Since certain expense items are amortized over closed periods each year, the
deferred portions of these items must be tracked annually. If the amounts serve to reduce OPEB expense they are labeled

as deferred inflows. If they will increase OPEB expense they are labeled as deferred outflows. The amortization of these

amounts is accomplished on a level dollar basis, with no interest included in the deferred amounts. Experience gains/losses and the impact of changes in actuarial assumptions, if any, are amortized over the average remaining service life of the

active and inactive System members at the beginning of the fiscal year. Investment gains and losses are amortized over a
fixed five-year period. Deferred inflows and outflows as of the Measurement Date include:

Difference between expected and actual experience
Change of assumptions
Changes in proportion and differences between employer
contributions and proportionate shares of contributions
Differences between expected and actual investment
earnings on plan investments
				
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

$

		 Total

4,487,960

$ 2,618,795
51,920

290,440

46,844

4,778,400
1,111,861

1,547,869
4,265,428
-

$ 5,890,261

$ 4,265,428

Deferred outflows of resources resulting from employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $1,111,861

which include the implicit subsidy reported of $268,196, will be recognized as a reduction of net OPEB liability in the year
ending December 31, 2019. The remainder of the deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources are amortized over the
remaining service lives of participants with remaining amortization as follows:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
		

$ 123,836
123,836
123,837
424,459
(151,508)
(131,488)
$ 512,972

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position: Detailed information about the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued OPEB plan financial reports.

NOTE 12 – Contingencies and Commitments

Self-Insurance: The Company retains certain insurable risks up to a fixed maximum per claim exposure. The risk is miti-

gated by maintaining a self-insured retention (“S.I.R.”) of $1,000,000 per occurrence for auto and general liability claims

and lawsuits with excess liability insurance above the S.I.R. in multiple layers totaling $35,000,000. Claims and suits are
managed by the Company with the assistance of outside counsel.

The Company is primarily self-funded for workers’ compensation claims with excess insurance in place with a specific (per
accident) retention of $600,000, an estimated policy aggregate retention of $3,096,667 (approximately 363% of deposit

premium based upon payroll estimates) and an aggregate limit of $3,000,000. Workers’ compensation claims are managed by a third-party administrator with oversight by the Company.
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Changes in the liability for self-insurance for liability and workers’ compensation claims are as follows:
2018

Liability – beginning of year
Accruals for current year claims
and changes in estimate
Claims paid

$ 1,756,285

Liability – end of year

$ 1,612,744

762,245
(905,786)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
2017

$ 865,968
1,563,169
(672,852)
$ 1,756,285

Claims have not exceeded coverage for the last 2 years.
Claims and Litigation: The Company is involved in litigation, which has arisen out of operations in the ordinary course of
business. The Company accrues losses from litigation as a liability based on estimates. While it is not possible to forecast
the outcomes of litigation, it is the opinion of the Company’s management, based on evaluations by outside counsel, that
they will not have a material adverse effect on the financial statements of the Company.

Construction Commitments: The estimated cost to complete construction projects under contract was approximately $62
million at December 31, 2018.

Schedule of the Company’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability

December 31, 2018
2018

Company’s proportion of the net
pension liability

2017

2016

2015

2014

1.27%

1.24%

1.19%

1.28%

1.25%

Company’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability

$ 77,085,962

$ 72,516,743

$ 58,797,619

$ 55,122,691

$ 40,419,796

Company’s covered payroll

$ 31,370,897

$ 29,830,808

$ 28,494,478

$ 29,911,208

$ 29,126,777

Company’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability as a percentage
of its covered payroll

245.72%

243.09%

206.35%

184.29%

138.77%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

53.54%

53.30%

55.50%

59.97%

66.80%

Notes:

1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the June 30 year-end that occurred within the
fiscal year.

2) GASB 68 requires this schedule to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled,
the Company is presenting information for those years for which information is available.
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Note:

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - OPEB

1) This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-

Schedule of the Company’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

year trend is compiled, the Company is presenting information for those years for which information is available.

December 31, 2018

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms:

2018

Company’s proportion of the net OPEB
liability

2018: There were no changes in assumptions and benefit terms since the prior measurement date.

1.27%

Company’s proportionate share of
the net OPEB liability

$ 22,471,844

Company’s covered payroll

$ 31,370,897

Company’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability as a percentage of its covered payroll

71.63%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability

57.62%

2017: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the
total pension liability have been updated as follows:

• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.50% to 6.25%.
• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.25% to 2.30%.
• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 3.05%.

2016: There were no changes in assumptions and benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
2015: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the

total pension liability have been updated as described in Schedule D of the CERS actuary report. The changes are noted below:
• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.75% to 7.50%.

Notes:

• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.50% to 3.25%.

1) The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the June 30 year-end that occurred within the

• The assumed rate of wage inflation was reduced from 1.00% to 0.75%.

fiscal year.

• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.50% to 4.00%.

2) GASB 75 requires this schedule to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, the

• The mortality table used for active members is RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013

Company is presenting information for those years for which information is available.

(multiplied by 50% for males and 30% for females).

• For healthy retired members and beneficiaries, the mortality table used is the RP-2000 Combined Mortality Table

Schedule of the Company’s Pension Contributions

projected with Scale BB to 2013 (setback 1 year for females). For disabled members, the RP-2000 Combined Disabled

December 31, 2018
Statutorily required contribution

Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2013 (set back 4 years for males) is used for the period after disability
2018

2017

2016

2015

$ 4,994,870

$ 4,402,741

$ 3,848,753

$ 3,680,646

retirement. There is some margin in the current mortality tables for possible future improvement in mortality

2014

$ 3,907,026

rates and that margin will be reviewed again when the next experience investigation is conducted.

• The assumed rates of Retirement, Withdrawal and Disability were updated to more accurately reflect experience.
Contributions in relation to the
statutorily required contribution

(4,994,870)

Annual contribution deficiency
(excess)

$

Company’s contributions as a
percentage of statutorily required
contribution for pension
Company’s covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of
its covered payroll
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-

(4,402,741)

$

-

(3,848,753)

$

-

(3,680,646)

(3,907,026)

$

$

-

-

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

100.00%

$ 31,805,010

$30,405,336

$29,125,528

$ 29,787,416

$29,411,439

15.70%

14.48%

13.21%

12.36%

13.28%
page 67

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION - OPEB

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Investments

Schedule of the Company’s OPEB Contributions

December 31, 2018

December 31, 2018
Statutorily required contribution

2018

$ 1,621,263

Contributions in relation to the statutorily required
contribution
Annual contribution deficiency (excess)
Company’s contributions as a percentage of statutorily
required contribution for OPEB
Company’s covered payroll
Contributions as a percentage of its covered
payroll

(1,621,263)
$

100.00%

$ 31,805,010
5.10%

Note:
1) This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-

year trend is compiled, the Company is presenting information for those years for which information is available.

Changes in Assumptions and Benefit Terms:
2018: There were no changes in assumptions and benefit terms since the prior measurement date.
2017: Since the prior measurement date, the demographic and economic assumptions that affect the measurement of the
total OPEB liability have been updated as follows:

				
		
MATURITY
PAR

FAIR MARKET
VALUE

Bond Reserve Account - 2009A
Fidelity Governmental Fund

2.12%

01/31/19

Bayerische Landesbank Repo

3.46%

11/15/25

3,916,464

3,916,464

Bond Reserve Account - 2009B
Fidelity Governmental Fund

2.12%

01/31/19

655,043

655,043

Bayerische Landesbank Repo

3.46%

11/15/29

4,307,514

4,307,514

2.12%

01/31/19

1,723,548

1,723,548

0.75%

05/15/19

2,239,000

2,243,993

2.12%

01/31/19

172,547

172,547

0.75%

05/15/19

369,000

366,823

2.12%

01/31/19

377,876

377,876

0.75%

05/15/19

782,000

777,386

2.12%

01/31/19

189,956

189,956

0.75%

05/15/19

357,000

354,894

2.12%

01/31/19

265,504

265,504

0.75%

05/15/19

414,000

411,557

Bond Reserve Account - 2014
Fidelity Governmental Fund
US Treasury Bond
Bond Service Account - Series 2009A
Fidelity Governmental Fund
US Treasury Bond
Bond Service Account - Series 2009B
Fidelity Governmental Fund
US Treasury Note
Bond Service Account - Series 2014
Fidelity Governmental Fund
US Treasury Note
Bond Service Account - Series 2015
Fidelity Governmental Fund
US Treasury Note

$

1,914,463

$

1,914,463

• The assumed investment rate of return was decreased from 7.50% to 6.25%.

Repurchase Agreement
US Treasury Note

1.72%

04/15/19

34,000,000

34,000,000

• Payroll growth assumption was reduced from 4.00% to 3.05%.

Treasury Portfolio
US Treasury Note

1.59%

01/15/19

7,756,400

7,756,400

US Treasury Note

1.59%

03/15/19

5,373,100

5,373,100

US Treasury Note

1.59%

04/15/19

5,774,700

5,774,700

			

$ 70,588,115

$ 70,581,768

• The assumed rate of inflation was reduced from 3.25% to 2.30%.
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amount of each interest payment on such taxable bonds. The interest amounts reflected on the Schedule of Outstanding

SUMMARIZED SCHEDULE OF BOND ISSUES

Bond Indebtedness and Annual Debt Service Requirements for the 2009B Series do not reflect this BABs subsidy payment.
2015 Series Bond Issue

The tax-exempt Water System Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue
of the Company.

As of October 1, 2013, The Internal Revenue Service Office of Tax Exempt Bonds announced a new sequester reduction in

amounts paid to issuers of direct pay bonds for which issuers elected to receive a direct payment from the U.S. Treasury. The
sequester reduction to the BABs subsidy payments was 5.6 percent for the federal fiscal year ending 2018.

Master Resolution Date

November 10, 2009

Original amount

$119,445,000

Fourth supplemental resolution date
Interest rate

Bonds payable

Interest payable

Call provisions in whole or in part

October 20, 2015

May 15 and November 15

November 10, 2009

Original amount

$63,195,000

Bonds payable

November 15

			
			
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 		

$ 111,815,000

$ 37,229,231

$ 149,044,231

100% after November 15, 2022

$116,220,000

November 10, 2009
2.25% to 5.00%
November 15

May 15 and November 15

100% after November 15, 2019

2009B Series Bond Issue

The taxable Water System Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works (“Board”) and are payable only from

revenue of the Company. This series was issued as Federally Taxable Build America Bonds – Direct Payment. The American
Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 authorized the Board to issue these taxable bonds, known as Build America Bonds
(“BABs”), to finance capital expenditures and elect to receive a subsidy payment from the U.S. Treasury equal to 35% of the
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AGGREGATE
BOND
SERVICE

			

May 15 and November 15

Original amount

2015 BONDS 		
PRINCIPAL 		
INSTALLMENTS
INTEREST

$

2.50% to 5.00%

November 10, 2009

Call provisions in whole or in part

100% after November 15, 2019

$ 4,026,169
3,904,169
3,717,919
3,462,419
3,184,419
2,892,169
2,584,919
2,327,719
2,127,919
1,922,119
1,710,019
1,491,469
1,256,781
1,024,431
785,031
538,281
273,279

July 15, 2014

Master Resolution Date

Interest payable

May 15 and November 15

$ 2,440,000
3,725,000
5,110,000
5,560,000
5,845,000
6,145,000
6,430,000
6,660,000
6,860,000
7,070,000
7,285,000
7,510,000
7,745,000
7,980,000
8,225,000
8,480,000
8,745,000

of the Company.

Bonds payable

3.75% to 5.00%

2019 		
2020 		
2021 		
2022		
2023		
2024		
2025		
2026		
2027		
2028		
2029		
2030		
2031		
2032		
2033		
2034		
2035		

The tax-exempt Water System Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue

Interest rate

November 15

Call provisions in whole or in part

2009A Series Bond Issue

First supplemental resolution date

Bonds payable

November 10, 2009

Schedule of Outstanding Bond Indebtedness and Annual Debt Service Requirements

Master Resolution Date

Call provisions in whole or in part

$86,710,000

Interest payable

100% after November 15, 2025

of the Company.

Interest payable

Original amount

Interest rate

November 15

The tax-exempt Water System Revenue Bonds were issued by the Board of Water Works and are payable only from revenue

Interest rate

November 10, 2009

Second supplemental resolution date

2.00% to 5.00%

2014A Series Bond Issue

Third supplemental resolution date

Master Resolution date
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6,466,169
7,629,169
8,827,919
9,022,419
9,029,419
9,037,169
9,014,919
8,987,719
8,987,919
8,992,119
8,995,019
9,001,469
9,001,781
9,004,431
9,010,031
9,018,281
9,018,279

			
			
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 		

2014 BONDS 		
PRINCIPAL 		
INSTALLMENTS
INTEREST

AGGREGATE
BOND
SERVICE

2019		
2020		
2021		
2022		
2023		
2024		
2025		
2026		
2027		
2028		
2029		
2030		
2031		

$ 3,500,000
3,665,000
3,800,000
3,930,000
4,065,000
4,200,000
4,350,000
4,430,000
4,525,000
4,635,000
4,760,000
4,910,000
5,090,000

$ 1,996,850
1,821,850
1,675,250
1,523,250
1,366,050
1,203,450
1,035,450
926,700
815,950
680,200
541,150
374,550
178,150

$

			

$ 55,860,000

$ 14,138,850

$ 69,998,850

			
			
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 		

2019		
2020		
2021		
2022		
2023		
2024		
2025		
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2009A BONDS 		
PRINCIPAL 		
INSTALLMENTS
INTEREST

$

5,496,850
5,486,850
5,475,250
5,453,250
5,431,050
5,403,450
5,385,450
5,356,700
5,340,950
5,315,200
5,301,150
5,284,550
5,268,150

			
			
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 		

2019		
2020		
2021		
2022		
2023		
2024		
2025		
2026		
2027		
2028		
2029		
			
			
			
YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 		

$ 1,467,225
1,258,725
1,083,125
899,925
708,525
483,525
247,500

$

$ 33,670,000

$ 6,148,550

$ 39,818,550

$

8,580,000
7,665,000
6,730,000
5,790,000
4,820,000
3,835,000
2,805,000
7,960,000
7,105,000
6,215,000
5,285,000

$ 66,790,000

$

AGGREGATE
BOND
SERVICE

3,380,518
2,985,838
2,621,750
2,293,662
2,004,162
1,763,162
1,561,825
1,414,563
976,763
603,750
277,463

$ 11,960,518
10,650,838
9,351,750
8,083,662
6,824,162
5,598,162
4,366,825
9,374,563
8,081,763
6,818,750
5,562,463

$ 19,883,456

$ 86,673,456

KIA NOTE 		
PRINCIPAL 		
INSTALLMENTS
INTEREST

AGGREGATE
BOND
SERVICE

2019
2020		
2021		
2022		
2023		
2024		
2025		
2026		
2027		
2028		
2029		
2030		
2031		

$ 90,632
92,454
94,312
96,208
98,142
100,114
102,127
104,180
106,274
108,410
110,589
112,811
115,078

$ 26,176
24,354
22,496
20,600
18,666
16,694
14,681
12,629
10,535
8,398
6,219
3,997
1,729

$ 116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,809
116,809
116,808
116,808
116,808
116,807

			

$ 1,331,331

$ 187,174

$ 1,518,505

AGGREGATE
BOND
SERVICE

4,170,000
4,390,000
4,580,000
4,785,000
5,000,000
5,245,000
5,500,000

2009B BONDS 		
PRINCIPAL 		
INSTALLMENTS
INTEREST

5,637,225
5,648,725
5,663,125
5,684,925
5,708,525
5,728,525
5,747,500
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Board of Water Works
As of December 31, 2018

Schedule of Operation and Maintenance Expenses
OPERATING AND MAINTENANCE EXPENSES FOR YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

Pumping			

$

8,133,297

Water Treatment			

10,749,907

Transmission and distribution			

20,146,503

Customer accounts expenses			

11,457,337

Administrative and general expenses			

28,223,439

Operating expenses over (under) applied			

(418,230)

Total operating and maintenance expenses			

$ 78,292,253

The Board of Water Works is the governing body of Louisville Water Company.
It includes six members appointed by the Mayor of Louisville Metro, who also
serves as an ex officio member. No more than three of the appointed members

may be from the same political party. Board members serve staggered fouryear terms and may succeed themselves.

DR. SUNDEEP DRONAWAT
President, Payment
Holdings, CEO &
Co-Founder, POS on Cloud

PAUL ESSELMAN

Chief Operating Officer
Speed Museum

TIERRA KAVANAUGH
WAYNE
CEO and Founder
TKT & Associates

GREG FISCHER

Mayor, Louisville
Metro (ex officio)

CREIGHTON
MERSHON

Chair - Retired,
General Counsel, BellSouth
ATT/KY Operations

DR. SHARON KERRICK
Dean, W. Fielding Rubel
School of Business,
Bellarmine University

CRAIG D. WILLMAN
Vice-Chair Retired Louisville
Firefighter

Executive Leadership Team
As of December 31, 2018
Back R0w:
MICHAEL TIGUE, Vice President, Compliance, General Counsel and
Corporate Secretary

ADAM CARTER, President AFSCME Local 1683
TERRENCE SPENCE, Vice President, Human Resources and Labor Relations
SPENCER BRUCE, President and Chief Executive Officer
TOM LUCKETT, Vice President, Information Technology and Chief
Information Officer

TIM KRAUS, Vice President, Production Operations and Chief Engineer

Front R0w:
KELLEY DEARING SMITH, Vice President, Communications and Marketing
LYNN PEARSON, Vice President, Finance and Treasurer
DAVE VOGEL, Executive Vice President, Customer Service and Distribution

Operations

Louisville Water Company is an Equal Opportunity Employer. All qualified applicants receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, national origin, or protected veteran status, and will not be discriminated against on the
basis of disability.
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